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2019
473,369,529 100.15
718,565 0.15
472,650,964
100.00
50,318
2019

- 70,199,690 7.18 504,098,678 6.74 473,369,529 100.15

2019

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.0000 09/01/2049

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.5000 09/01/2049

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 04.0000 09/01/2049

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 02.5000 09/01/2049

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.5000 09/01/2049

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 05.5000 09/01/2049

GNMA Gii30 TBA 04.0000 09/01/2049

Federative REP of Brazil USD 04.6250 01/13/2028

GNR 2016-H23 NI 10 02.2956 10/20/2066

10

Jpmce 2012-C6 G P/P 144A 02.9720 05/15/2045

2019 31 47.25

2019

2019

46/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
8.17 870
1,217,542 129,620
2010 8.22 875
8.45 900
1,418,003 150,961
2011 8.51 906
7.70 820
1,210,337 128,852
2012 7.76 826
7.98 850
1,134,757 120,806
2013 8.05 857
8.04 856
1,335,204 142,146
2014 8.11 863
10 7.51 800
1,179,159 125,533
2015 7.58 807
11 6.64 707
587,539 62,549
(2016 ) 6.72 715
12 6.88 732
561,947 59,825
(2017 ) 6.97 742
13 6.94 739
508,057 54,088
2018 7.03 748
14 6.58 701
467,247 49,743
2019 6.68 711
6.73 716
2018 489,031 52,062
6.83 727
6.64 707
10 479,493 51,047
6.74 718
6.57 699
11 471,475 50,193
6.67 710
6.40 681
12 459,209 48,887
6.50 692
6.57 699
2019 471,256 50,170
6.67 710
6.57 699
469,841 50,019
6.68 711
6.57 699
467,189 49,737
6.67 710
6.58 701
467,247 49,743
6.68 711
6.58 701
467,135 49,731
6.68 711
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6.62 705
470,084 50,045
6.73 716
6.68 711
473,747 50,435
6.78 722
6.65 708
472,651 50,318
6.75 719
0.684 72.82
2009 2010 30 0.624 66.43
0.670 71.33
2010 2011 30 0.614 65.37
0.510 54.29
2011 2012 30 0.464 49.40
0.464 49.40
2012 2013 30 0.416 44.29
0.444 47.27
2013 2014 30 0.396 42.16
10 0.435 46.31
2014 2015 30 0.387 41.20
11 0.408 43.44
2015 2016 30 0.360 38.33
12 0.408 43.44
2016 2017 30 0.360 38.33
13 0.408 43.44
2017 2018 30 0.360 38.33
14 0.404 43.01
2018 2019 30 0.357 38.01
0.034 3.62
2018
0.030 3.19
0.034 3.62
10
0.030 3.19
0.034 3.62
11
0.030 3.19
0.034 3.62
12
0.030 3.19
0.034 3.62
2019
0.030 3.19
0.034 3.62
0.030 3.19
0.034 3.62
0.030 3.19
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0.030 3.19
0.027 2.87
0.030 3.19
0.027 2.87
0.030 3.19
0.027 2.87
0.030 3.19
0.027 2.87
0.030 3.19
0.027 2.87
2009 2010 30 36.83 36.11
2010 2011 30 12.19 11.48
2011 2012 30 2.73 3.28
2012 2013 30 10.02 9.40
2013 2014 30 6.54 5.85
10 2014 2015 30 1.19 1.79
11 2015 2016 30 6.26 6.70
12 2016 2017 30 10.08 9.34
13 2017 2018 30 7.03 6.20
14 2018 2019 30 0.72 0.16
() RE®E (%) =100 » [ i Aﬂf‘lm"l 1 ]
IR RA
NAV 1

NAV NAV

49/270



HAERIAS LU—OHDORIREMBO#HS

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(REIL) ) Ly LB TEEALD
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2058 008E 2007E 2O0EE J08E 0I0S 2011% 2002% 2013 2048 0158 ZNeS aTE 01ES
[€;] 13 Io8 08 A 63 WA WA G 08
2000 50,730 136,640 1,027,000
50,730 136,640 1,027,000
2010 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2010 61,110 136,840 951,270
61,110 136,840 951,270
2011 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2011 53,440 168,310 836,400
53,440 168,310 836,400
2012 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2012 35,020 167,200 704,220
35,020 167,200 704,220
2013 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2013 15,900 94,550 625,570
15,900 94,550 625,570
2014 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
1,650 116,400 510,820
2014
1,650 116,400 510,820
2015 30
11
6,530 60,100 457,250
(2015 (6,530) (60,100) (457,250)
2016 30 ’ ’ ’
12
3,990 37,850 423,390
(2016 (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30 ’ ’ ’
13
2017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
2018 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
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14
2018 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
2019 30
200 110,204,960 49,370,961 147,178,639
110,204,960 49,370,961 147,178,639
2010 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2010 74,801,470 56,329,982 165,650,127
74,801,470 56,329,982 165,650,127
2011 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2011 51,130,390 61,583,745 155,196,772
51,130,390 61,583,745 155,196,772
2012 30 ( ) ¢ ) ¢ )
2012 39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
2013 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2013 49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
2014 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
2014 42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
2015 30
11
(2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
2016 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
12
(2016 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
2017 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
13
2017 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
2018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
8,861,870 60,047,420
2018
8,861,870 60,047,420
2019 30
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2019 30 2018 30

3,4,8,12 753,872,904 80,257,309 696,360,850 74,134,576

8 156,206,166 16,629,708 95,109,773 10,125,386

6 1,678,258 178,667

4,8 18,240 1,942 11,895 1,266

4,579,519 487,536 5,775,963 614,909

3,8 48,007,361 5,110,864 826,016 87,938

962,684,190 102,487,359 799,762,755 85,142,743

3,4,8,12 225,015,880 23,955,191 124,993,815 13,306,842

8,11 266,876,665 28,411,690 162,327,549 17,281,391

6 7,337 781 674,978 71,858

4,8 347,941 37,042 31,441 3,347

8,9 583,334 62,102 1,341,065 142,770
3,8 4,743 505

8,9 209,822 22,338 96,539 10,278

8 2,252,736 239,826 1,639,844 174,578

8,9 359,684 38,292 327,983 34,917

495,658,142 52,767,766 291,433,214 31,025,980

8 467,026,048 49,719,593 508,329,541 54,116,763

467,247,168 49,743,134 508,056,570 54,087,702
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2019 30 2018 30
3 29,094,361 3,097,386 31,811,065 3,386,606
(75,077) (7,993) 49,430 5,262

(20,587,023) (2,191,694) 9,140,114 973,057

10 3,817 406 270,805 28,830
8,436,078 898,105 41,271,414 4,393,755

9 7,422,102 790,157 8,400,486 894,316
9 170,027 18,101 177,319 18,877
9 76,107 8,102 50,229 5,347
9 392,369 41,772 392,761 41,813
9 82,420 8,774 83,443 8,883
9 90,082 9,590 90,754 9,662
9 112,300 11,955 107,061 11,398
8,345,407 888,452 9,302,053 990,297

90,671 9,653 31,969,361 3,403,458

7 (25,776,217) (2,744,136) (27,287,591) (2,905,037)
(25,685,546) (2,734,483) 4,681,770 498,421

3.5 (32,440) (3,454) (22,553) (2,401)
(25,717,986) (2,737,937) 4,659,217 496,020
(25,717,986) (2,737,937) 4,659,217 496,020
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2018 30

508,329,541 54,116,763 561,805,744 59,809,840
(25,717,986) (2,737,937) 4,659,217 496,020
82,841 8,819

30,597,378 3,257,397

46,645,322 4,965,861 21,686,005 2,308,692

(60,199, 820) (6,408,873)  (109,335,489)  (11,639,856)
(2,031,009) (216,221) (1,166,155) (124,149)

(15,585,507) (1,659,233) (58,218,261) (6,197,916)

467,026,048

49,719,593

508,329,541

54,116,763
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2019 30 2018 30
(25,717,986) (2,737,937) 4,659,217 496,020
3 (39,224,844) (4,175,877) (45,484,726) (4,842,304)
3,5 32,440 3,454 22,553 2,401
7 25,776,217 2,744,136 27,287,591 2,905,037
10,098,043 1,075,038 13,651,108 1,453,297
75,077 7,993 (49,430) (5,262)
(28,961,053) (3,083,194) 86,313 9,189
8 (61,096,393) (6,504,322) 177,615,487 18,908,945
8,11 104,549,116 11,130,299 (185,559,401)  (19,754,654)
4,8 (6,345) (675) (11,895) (1,266)
4,8 50,264 5,351
8,9 113,283 12,060 6,058 645
4,8 (25,579) (2,723)
4,8 316,500 33,695 31,441 3,347
8,9 (757,731) (80,668) (166,316) (17,706)
3,8 4,743 505 (68,083) (7,248)
8 612,892 65,248 261,121 27,799
8,9 31,701 3,375 (81,531) (8,680)
3,4,8,12 (57,512,054) (6,122,733) 267,673,611 28,496,533
3,4,8,12 100,022,065 10,648,349 (211,812,847) _ (22,549,596)
57,316,724 6,101,938 47,998,643 5,109,936
30,290,805 3,224,759 33,158,271 3,530,030
87,607,529 9,326,698 81,156,914 8,639,965
7 (25,776,217) (2,744,136) (27,287,591) (2,905,037)
6 48,323,580 5,144,528 51,904,002 5,525,700
6 (62,898,470) (6,696,171) (110,387,166) __ (11,751,818)
(40,351,107) (4,295,779) (85,770,755) (9,131,155)
47,256,422 5,030,919 (4,613,841) (491,190)
3,8 826,016 87,938 5,390,427 573,865
(75,077) (7,993) 49,430 5,262
3,8 48,007,361 5,110,864 826,016 87,938
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2019 30
2019 30 467,026,048
2018 30 508,329,541 2018
2019 30
2005
18 2005 18
2005 13
2005 13

2015
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2018
39

39
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90

12
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30



60
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15,264 0.01 2018 100
0.01
2019 30 2018 30
170,771 105,298
56,028 720,718
47,780,562
48,007,361 826,016
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32,409,480 2018 39,995,220
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to be announced
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39
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12

2019 30 2018 30
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2019 30 2018 30
300 10
50,000
1,000,000 10,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00

300 10
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2019 2018 2019 2018

30 30 30 30
58,906,726 66,423,911 1,086 1,086

2,880,875 2,523,105
(5,734,364)  (10,040,290)

56,053,237 58,906,726 1,086 1,086

2019 2018 2019 2018

30 30 30 30
68,909,290 80,202,786 3,387,770 423,390
4,407,620 6,954,910 3,132,640
(8,861,870)  (15,701,116) (307,260) (168, 260)
60,047,420 68,909,290 10,035,420 3,387,770

2019 30 2018 30
100
100 2019 30 2018 30
100
2019 30
100 2018 100
25,805,905
0.4486 2018 27,324,698 0.441
2018
22,872,771 0.357 2018 26,842,564
0.36 2,903,446 0.404
2018 445,027 0.408
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65

86
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2019 30 2018 30
200,000,000 227,000,000
16,252,149

1,101,844,603

2,581,053,026

200,000,000 407,000,000
997,917,082 2,501,618,410
491 376
364,195,334 659,864,805
15,088,031 2,163,884

1,776,974,754

3,584,448,175

74,871,720 93,235,274
242,931,825 218,326,904
36,471,000 28,815,000
100,740,000 75,755,000
17,930,000 15,388,000
* 2019 30
15.43 12.11 30
16.90 18.68 13.73 1440
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2019 30 2018 30
209,500,000 268,500,000
41,100,000 39,800,000
1,976,400,000 3,042,400,000
318,200,000 427,800,000
20,600,000 39,800,000
1,629,200,000 2,639,500,000
400 100
442,800,000 557,100,000
4,100,000 2,000,000
2,948,000,000 2,716,400,000
81,800,000 151,700,000
239,300,000 122,000,000
129,700,000 104,000,000
16,500,000 16,700,000

99
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2019 2018 30 2018
2018 30
2019 30 0.48
2018 30 0.57 0.55 1.04
2018 11
2018 11
2019 30 3.30 0.11 3.31
2018 30 3.87 3.74 5.40

2018 11
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2019 30

340,764 340,764
96,181 96,181

360,462 291,479 651,941
259,579 259,579

9,830 9,830

63,636 63,636

23,650,446 4,821,711 28,472,157
663 663

4,415 4,415

1,037,645 1,037,645

110,112 110,112

39,731 39,731

763,001 763,091

99,791 99,791

24,351,672 7,597,864 31,949,536
1,254,438 1,254,438

969,992 969,992

89,791 89,791

131,218 131,218

7,410,325 7,410,325

259 259

525,283 525,283

242,723 242,723

331,833 331,833

111,902 111,902

195,424 195,424

11,263,188 11,263,188
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82,115 82,115
1,465 1,465
6 6
44 44
87,141 87,141
170,771 170,771
2018 30
2,463,819 2,463,819
44,460 44,460
902,844 902,844
901,576 470,911 1,372,487
426,687 98,698 525,385
20,933,441 1,971,517 22,904,958
1,515 1,515
272,878 272,878
502,867 502,867
98,376 98,376
112,024 112,024
2,819,732 2,819,732
67,724 67,724
24,725,523 7,363,546 32,089,069
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1,159,618 1,159,618
532,759 532,759
1,499,428 1,499,428
362,766 362,766
24,103 24,103
5,322,545 5,322,545
171,343 171,343
646,703 646,703
3,688 3,688
729,656 729,656
738,693 738,693
93,934 93,934
174,534 174,534
526,351 526,351
12,335 12,335
11,998,456 11,998,456
100,310 100,310
858 858

6 6

48 48

4,076 4,076

105,298 105,298
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15,164 2018 104,328

2019 30
47,780,562 226,799 48,007,361
156,206,166 156,206,166
18,240 18,240
4,579,519 4,579,519
59,730,540 64,711,313 627,005,824 2,410,063 753,857,740
107,529,342 64,711,313 627,005,824 163,422,547 962,669,026
266,876,665 266,876,665
7,337 7,337
347,941 347,941
1,102,822 907,755 242,159 2,252,736
583,334 583,334
4,743 4,743
209,822 209,822
359,684 359,684
4,749,794 4,766,077 214,204,192 1,295,817 225,015,880
6,200,557 5,673,832 214,446,351 269,337,402 495,658,142
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2018 30

826,016 826,016
95,109,773 95,109,773
1,678,258 1,678,258
11,895 11,895
5,775,963 5,775,963
82,289,935 54,451,171 555,802,924 3,712,492 696,256,522
82,301,830 54,451,171 555,802,924 107,102,502 799,658,427
162,327,549 162,327,549
674,978 674,978
31,441 31,441
320,000 68,299 1,251,545 1,639,844
1,341,065 1,341,065
96,539 96,539
327,983 327,983
641,730 7,731,238 112,865,685 3,755,162 124,993,815
993,171 7,799,537 114,117,230 168,523,276 291,433,214

2019 30 2018 30
1,234,458 255,681
27,859,903 31,555,384
29,094,361 31,811,065

2019 30 2018 30
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15,164 2018 104,328
2019 30

235,107,113 25,018,409 702,543,484 962,669,026
266,876,665 266,876,665
7,337 7,337
347,941 347,941
982,000 1,270,736 2,252,736
583,334 583,334
4,743 4,743
209,822 209,822
359,684 359,684
467,492 1,233,568 223,314,820 225,015,880
467,026,048 467,026,048
736,865,066 1,233,568 224,585,556 962,684,190
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2018

39,995,220

2018 30
155,089,246 24,211,628 620,357,553 799,658,427
162,327,549 162,327,549
674,978 674,978
31,441 31,441
320,000 1,319,844 1,639,844
1,341,065 1,341,065
96,539 96,539
327,983 327,983
799,727 3,246,145 120,947,943 124,993,815
508,329,541 508,329,541
674,248,823 3,246,145 122,267,787 799,762,755
32,409,480
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2019 2018
30 30
40.26 32.35
.19
0.92 25
10.08 8.86
24.28 21.31
11.65 20.05
4.52 11.18
14.42 5.94
6.79 69
(15.11) (7.63)
100.00 100.00

2019 30 2018 30
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6,229,441

2019 30
320,534,643
86,952,874

174,075,249
94,719,600

2018

2018

7,732,671

10
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6,290,068 2018 9,229,057

40.61

11.02
25.56
13.91
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2018
2018

2019 30 2018 30
698,294,207 630,695,542
31,774,000 39,211,000
22,077,861 26,243,881
48,007,361 826,016
156,206,166 95,109,773
1,678,258
4,579,519 5,775,963
18,240 11,895
12
2019 30 2018 30

12
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2019

30

15,164 15,164

2,333,000 2,333,000
982,000 1,270,736 2,252,736
966,198 966,198
1,449,191 1,449,191
3,016,232 3,016,232
1,456,527 1,456,527
665,674 665,674
916,163 916,163
3,217,533 3,217,533
7,364,011 7,364,011
204,359 204,359
404,041 404,041
10,440,125 10,440,125
4,920,657 4,920,657
12,800,825 12,800,825
15,957,909 15,957,909
4,022,652 4,022,652
21,117,772 100 21,117,872
12,978,770 12,978,770
9,397,215 9,397,215
3,460,822 3,460,822
416,098 416,098
3,737,346 3,737,346
53,564,039 53,564,039
91,563,627 91,563,627
46,344,220 46,344,220
50,910,453 50,910,453
267,538 267,538
13,781,466 13,781,466
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468,589 468,589
457,759 457,759
3,252,693 3,252,693
132,016 132,016
697,380 697,380
147,928 147,928
300,338 300,338
51,425,173 51,425,173
307,040,498 307,040,498
982,000 742,867,573 15,264 743,864,837
2,410,063 2,410,063
254,017 254,017
4,415 4,415
168,938 168,938
7,170,634 7,170,634
10,008,067 10,008,067
753,872,904

47,780,562 47,780,562
9,475,265 9,475,265
3,142,260 3,142,260
91,641 91,641
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1,295,817 1,295,817
2,546,136 2,546,136
141,657 141,657
13,473,437 13,473,437
17,457,047 17,457,047
196,861,721 196,861,721
217,345 217,345
10,479,767 10,479,767
225,015,880

12,040,306 12,040,306
2,413,596 2,413,596
1,453,338 1,453,338
103,417 103,417
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2018

30

104,328 104,328
320,000 1,319,844 1,639,844
98,300 98,300
352,203 352,203
176,119 176,119
761,283 761,283
308,945 308,945
280,885 280,885
204,679 204,679
764,823 764,823
2,343,211 2,343,211
98,071 98,071
18,971,984 18,971,984
7,756,494 7,756,494
16,445,803 16,445,803
23,213,846 23,213,846
9,743,286 9,743,286
34,508,764 100 34,508,864
16,743,376 16,743,376
13,135,999 13,135,999
6,421,881 6,421,881
459,851 459,851
4,244,403 4,244,403
44,946,109 44,946,109
97,626,700 97,626,700
68,230,938 68,230,938
60,527,265 60,527,265
1,111,611 1,111,611
11,711,239 11,711,239
413,839 413,839
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1,631,599 1,631,599

2,490,448 2,490,448

435,758 435,758

1,613,331 1,613,331

172,575 172,575

938,344 938,344

73,445,067 73,445,067

158,656,091 158,656,091

320,000 682,409,292 100 682,729,392
3,712,492 3,712,492

4,073,351 4,073,351

332,888 332,888

5,512,727 5,512,727

13,631,458 13,631,458

696,360,850

12,023,960 12,023,960

1,303,256 1,303,256

162,213 162,213
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3,755,162 3,755,162
3,873,993 3,873,993
3,688 3,688
411,961 411,961
9,873,529 9,873,529
17,918,333 17,918,333
92,664,301 92,664,301
1,330,362 1,330,362
13,080,819 13,080,819
124,993,815

8,752,751 8,752,751
1,506,257 1,506,257
1,136,977 1,136,977

209,892 209,892
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2019 30 2018 30
47,780,562
676,122,760 607,540,153
15,164 104,328
31,774,000 39,211,000
2019 19,651,173 34,234,067
24,057,071 13,631,458
2,252,736 1,639,844
801,653,466 696,360,850
2019 30 2018 30
(16,477,601) 1,264,022
(4,180,682) 8,196,327
(20, 658,283) 9,460,349
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2.00 0.60

1.60 1.00

1.80 1.20

5,013,009 2018 5,761,194

22,500

0.02
60,000 15,000
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0.10
0.10
67,500
5,000
2019 30 2018 30
300,000
75,000
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11

12

2017

3,817

2018

30

270,805
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Bank of America Barclays Bank Barclays Capital Inc.
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Citibank, Citigroup Global

N.A. PLC (clearing broker) N.A. Markets, Inc.
2019 30
* #
8§ 768,316
* # 4,377 34,727 4,783
8 168,291
#
*# 582,037
§
# 110,432 227,927 268,611
# 106,031
O 1,265,816 134,731
o 28,539
*%
1,409,164 368,685 936,607 408,125 582,037
* #
8 1,028,888
*# 32,929
8§ 244,371
* # 251,705 1,481,356
* #
§ 11,289
123,631 131,565 93,532
# 296,031 82,229 414,863
# 156,906
#
671,367 246,723 1,284,548 665,301 1,481,356
737,797 121,962 (347,941) (257,176) (899,319)
Lo 737,797 (232,416) (899,319)
## (13 121,962
(347,941) (24,760)
TBA **x 784,127
TBA ** 130,000
TBA *x (232,416) (912,293)
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Credit Suisse

Deutsche Goldman Sachs

HSBC Bank USA,

JPMorgan Chase

International Bank AG International National Association Bank N.A.
2019 30
* 4 4,415
§
*# 52,630 55,906 11,786
§
*#
* # 1,573,166 638,657
§
# 119,151 202,508 188,764 240,237
# 83,942
il 995,432 7,413,187
*x 4 238,999
**k
1,744,947 1,896,918 188,764 7,988,151
*#
§
* # 14,582 1,570 26,411 8,701
§
* # 2,236,912 1,610,772
*#
§
# 49,214 235,772 163,046 175,150
# 235,981 1,298,845
# 1,010,276 5,809,450
# 217,345
2,300,708 1,570 3,199,212 163,046 7,509,491
(555,761) (1,570) (1,222,294) 25,718 478,660
## (10 (516,516) (1,156,851)
## s 380,000
(39,245) (1,570) (65,443) 25,718 98,660
TBA *x
TBA *x 380,000
TBA e (516,516) (1,156,851)
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JPMorgan Merrill Lynch Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Morgan Stanley & NatWest
Securities LLC International Fenner & Smith, Inc. Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2019 30
* 4
§
*# 4,729
§
*#
* # 911,297 338,875 364,374
§
26,503
# 283,856
# 64,044
*x 4 3,972,300
*% #
il 31,774,000
942,529 338,875 31,774,000 4,400,718 283,856
*#
§
* # 57,464
§
* # 3,039,689 299,185 1,791,590
*#
§
8,263
# 118,242
# 218,187
# 3,503,135
#
3,105,416 299,185 5,512,912 118,242
(2,162,887) 39,690 31,774,000 (1,112,194) 165,614
## (il (2,187,887) 39,690 31,717,000 (1,112,194) 35,614
## s 25,000 57,000 130,000
TBA *x 117,292 124,867
TBA i 25,000 57,000 130,000
32,409,480
TBA e (2,232,236) (1,239,756)
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WestPac
UBS AG Banking Corp.

# 360,443

*k H
** 4

Fk

4,415

768,316

168,938

168,291

4,408,406

26,503
2,410,063
254,017
13,781,466
267,538
31,774,000

331,194 76,940

360,443

331,194 76,940 54,031,953

# 104,337

1,028,888

141,657

244,371

10,711,209

11,289
8,263
1,295,817
2,546,136
10,479,767
217,345

76,811 24,517

104,337

76,811 24,517 26,684,742

256,106

254,383 52,423 27,347,211

o~

#h 1) 244,450

## 1o

254,383

11,656

52,423

TBA *x 244,450
TBA *x

TBA **

1,270,736

260,000 982,000
32,409,480

(6,290, 068)
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Bank of America Barclays Bank Barclays Capital Inc. Citibank, Citigroup Global
N.A. PLC (clearing broker) N.A. Markets, Inc.
2018 30
* #
8§ 2,117,726
*# 13,839 28,386
§ 57,048
*#
*# 270,503
§ 3,318
# 339,854 335,441 525,962
# 1,424,715 276,477 627,941
> 2,038,344 1,024,551
*k #
**
3,816,752 640,304 2,178,092 2,178,454 270,503
* 4
8§ 2,135,533
*# 154,169 23,149
§ 51,331
*# 288,857 328,072
* #
§
479,258 343,645 374,804
# 1,253,154 339,362 617,011
# 1,829,810 259,768 1,986,976
#
3,851,079 1,096,944 2,186,864 3,001,940 328,072
(34,327) (456,640) (8,772) (823,486) (57,569)
## 1 (34,327) (456,640) (823,486)
# (3
(8,772) (57,569)
TBA **
TBA H*
TBA i (110,778) (540,975) (1,130,115)
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Credit Suisse Credit Suisse Securities Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
International (USA), LLC (clearing broker) Bank AG International National Association

2018 30
*
§ 13,447
* 4 128,062 116,254
§
* ¢
* ¢ 1,476,627 755,428
§
# 236,962 423,187 272,412
# 448,314
o 553,697 1,458,856
*k #
**
2,395,348 13,447 3,202,039 272,412
*
§ 36,116
* g 39,188 243 60,917
§
* ¢ 2,776,872 1,840,198
* ¢
§
181,456 806,292 96,528
# 523,970
# 609,560 3,026,666
#
3,607,076 36,116 243 6,258,043 96,528
(1,211,728) (22,669) (243)  (3,056,004) 175,884
# 11 (1,211,728) (3,056,004) 112,655
w1
(22,669) (243) 63,229
TBA ok 112,655
TBA ok
TBA ** (2,045,815) (3,119,833)
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Morgan Stanley &

Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Fenner & Smith, Inc. Co.International PLC
2018 30
* H#
§
*# 38,074 8,273
§
*#
* # 1,480,953 231,312 339,646
§
17,718
# 423,635
# 971,004 324,900
okl 4,928,260 1,707,455
el 4 1,111,611
ok 39,211,000
7,472,584 1,489,226 231,312 39,228,718 2,372,001
* # 3,688
§
*# 21,278 113,017
§
*# 2,151,939 59,090 1,470,243
* #
§
5,823
371,252
# 794,105 346,391
# 3,757,505 1,568,030
# 1,330,362
6,278,190 2,264,956 59,090 5,823 3,384,664
1,194,394 (775,730) 172,222 39,222,895 (1,012,663)
## (il 1,087,476 (775,730) 119,713 39,222,895 (1,012,663)
## s
106,918 52,509
TBA *x 1,087,476 119,713
TBA *x
39,995,220
TBA e (823,190) (1,218,822)
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NatWest State Street Bank Wells Fargo WestPac
Markets PLC and Trust Co. UBS AG Bank, N.A. Banking Corp.
2018 30

8 2,131,173

*# 332,888

8§ 57,048

. 4 4,554,469

§ 3,318
17,718
# 466,650 466,912 183,446 38,031 3,712,492

# 4,073,351
**H 76 11,711,239

**H# 1,111,611

** 39,211,000

466,650 466,912 183,446 76 38,031 66,916,307

* # 3,688

§ 2,171,649

*# 411,961

8§ 51,331

*# 8,915,271

5,823
151,685 535,126 272,924 142,192 3,755,162

# 3,873,993
# 42,504 13,080,819
# 1,330,362

151,685 535,126 272,924 42,504 142,192 33,600,059

314,965 (68,214) (89,478) (42,428)  (104,161) 33,316,248

o~

## 13 (60,957) (89,478)

## 1o 314,965

(7,257) (42,428)  (104,161)

TBA *x 1,319,844

TBA ** 320,000 320,000
39,995,220
TBA ** (60,957) (178,572) (9,229,057)
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Combined statements of financial position

End of each reparting parind
April 30
ASSETS Hotes 2015 2018
ﬁnanciﬂa:setsatfen‘rvaluemmghpfiﬁ_tmlnss* — = 3_4_8.]2 i STRAETLIOM 5&96.35?.55&
b bl i, sl - _ 10606 S3ATIE
Suhscriptinmc[f_unﬁs_miﬁngﬂttlem i & ) -_ _ leTeae
Receivable Borvariation margin on futures contracts 4,8 ——— i I.E.ldﬂ ) 115‘95
Intenest and ciher redeivables o S - 4,575,519 5,175,963
Cashandcashequiva'leﬁtf = 38 48,007,361 826,006
Tnhlhms - #62,664,190 798,762,755
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit arlos® 34,812 225,015,850 124,593,815
Purchases of investments awaiting settiement - aun 265,576,655 162,327.549
Redemptions of units awaiting settlement. . I S . ..
Ff'g.!rable for vasiation margin on centrally cleared SWAP COMFAETs 4.8 - 347,941 3441
_Popts emenap e ion = 85 563,334 1,341,065
Payable to custodian =i e 3.8 4,143 —
Payable for custody and sdmanistrative fees 8.9 Ha822 9653
Solialon chnmpatoniM R Rl g LTSS e
Other actrieed expenses 8,9 350,684 17863
Total Liabilities (sxcluding net assets attributable te helders - -
n_lmdum:hh units) 495,658,142 291,433,214
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeernable units st bid/ask prices B 467,026,048 $508,329,541
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeermable units of the:
Putnam Diversified Income Trust {Cayman) 46T, 247 168 5B0B.05E5T0

* SeeMote 3{bi)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) &

124/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

Forthe years ended
April30
OPERATING INCOME Note 1015 018
iterestromfinancit asstsand Tnanil st vl ough profaloss L3 semasm susugss
Mt reakized and-un.realiaed gain/Tloss) of assets arbdiIi-a_Ei_Ii::i_t';jQ{@_rgi!-_‘_r_l:_l._l(f?mie-:r _ (75077} 49,430
Kt reatized and unrealized gain/(hoss) on financial assets and financial liabdlities 21 fairvalue
through profit or loss - ) . 0587023 8,140,114
Met increase from payments by affifiates 10 3817 270,805
Tetal Operating Income 8,436,078 41,271,414
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees § T432,102 B.ADD 485
Euﬂ.l:ldyfen—s - ﬁ ) ooz 7729
Administrative fees 2 T, 107 0223
Transfer agent fees 9 392,368 332761
Tuseelees B £ 8240 83443
Audit fees k] 90,082 50,754
Cither expenses 9 112,300 107,061
ﬂﬂgemlllg E_xpunus - &34:5._“?_ 5,302,053
ﬂpef!tln,gl’rnm 90,671 31,969,361
Finance Costs
Distrihutinnstnho{dcrm!remmahleunns_ T (25,776, 217) 27,287,531}
Pml_'i'_t.l‘l:t.u_rss} _ll’tl.-rdiltrihutiunsmd Mfoﬂ! tax ilE,EB?.H-G! 4,681,770
withholding tazes 3,5 (32,4440) (22.553)
Profit/{Loss) after distributions and tax (25,717,986) 4,659,217
Increase/{Decrease) In net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units o
fram operations (525,717,988) 54,659,217
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) T
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Combined statements of changes in net assets

attributable to holders of redeemable units

Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the beginning of year

Increase/{Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units

from operations

Increase in capital frem settlement payments

REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTIONS
Proceeds from unéts Isswed

Class J

Clags M
alue of units redesmed

Class )

Class M
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Decrease in net assets resulting from redeemable unit transactions

Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the end of year

Forthe years ended
April 30

Hote 2015 2018

5508,329,541 5561,805,T44

(25,717,986) 4,659,217

- E2,841

& - 30,557,378

B 46,645,322 21,586,005

g (60,195,820 110%,335,489)

[ [2,051,004) [1.166,155)
(15,585,507} (58,218,261}

] $46T,026,048 £508,329,541

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements.
Putnam Diversified income Trust Funds (Cayman) B
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Combined statements of cash flows

Forthe years ended
; April 30 !

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: Hotes 019 018
Iweaiqi[tlmease] in nat assets attributable to halders of redeemable units from operations {525,717 986) 54,658,217
Adpustment to reconcile operating profit/{loss) for the final period to
netcaski genecated oyhised i o atiop sctv

Interest b financial assets and financial liabikues ot laa value through predit o loss 3 [39,224,844) [45,484,726)

Withholding taxes - o - - 3.5 32440 22,583

Distributions i the hokders of redeemble units. ! . Ll HIEL

Net amartization of premiums 200048, 13551108
_ Exchange gains/flosses) on cash and cash equivalents 75,017 (49,430)

(28,961,053) 85,313

et (increase]fdecrease in sales ofimestments awaiting settlerment. & — (61096,383)  ITTS1548T
Wet increase{decrease] in purchases of imvestments awaiting settiemant B, 11 104,549,116 (185,559,401
Met increase)decraass in receivable for varistion margin on futures contracts 4,8 (5,345) (L1855}
Me_t_[lnaeasglnﬂeﬂea_sghmgehable_fqrﬁ_ﬁatlpnmarginnﬂce-_lﬂ:allytlearedmapj:dn‘t_ﬁﬂs 48 - 50,264
het increasey|decrease] in payable for custody and admiristrative fees 89 113,283 058
Met increase/idecrease) in payable for variation margin on futures contracts 4.8 = {25,519
Mellm‘rsm_fﬁdecmgse:l i_rr_@nabtefnwarlaﬁum margin on centrally cheared swap contracts 4.8 316,500 31,441
Mes increaseidecrease] in payabie for management fees - 8,9 (757,731 (166,318
Met Increasef{decrease] in payable to custodian 38 B A3 168,083
Me_h:.c_rﬁmfideuease]l_nfﬁﬂ_amal?ncytm dervative contracts, iﬂ.'u.afue i 612,852 261,121
Met increasefidecrease] in payable for ather sccrued expenses L] 3701 {81,530
Nes (increase] decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit o loss 348,12 B {57,512.054) 267673511
Met increase/idecreass] in financial liabilities at fair valwe through profit o ks 3,4,8,12 100,023,065 (212,812,847
Cash fMlows generated fromjused in) operating activities 57,306,724 47,958,643
Interest recefved — S 30,290,805 EERE
Hut cash generated from/{used in) operating activities B7,607,529 81,156,914
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Distibutions paid 1o the holders of edeemable units 1 RSTTON  @rasnss
Proceeds from redeemabie units _ & 48,323,580 51,504,002
Redemptions ofedeemablounts —— 2 _Eeoag (0387168
Het cash generated frem/{used in) financing activities = 40,350,107 (85,770,755}
Netincrease/(decraase] in cash and cash equivalents B - 47,256,422 (4,613,841)
Cashand cash eauiaiens i begiing ofye _ 38 2616 s3s0.421
Euchange (gainslfiosses on cash and cash equivalents e R | - o . 43430
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofyear 38  SABD0T3EL  $8F6,006

The apcompanying notes ase an integral part of these financial statements.

Putnarm Diversified Income Trust Funds [Cayman) ]
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/19

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the following Motes to combined financial statements, references to “State Street”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Company
and references to “OTC", if any, represent aver-the-counter. References to “funds’ net assets” are based an net assets of $467,006,048 at April 30,
2019; $508,329,54] at April 30, 2018, Unless otherwise noted, the "reporting period” represents the period from May 1, 2018 through April 30, 2018,

Putram Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund (the “Master Fund®) is a series trust of the Putnam Offshore Master Series Trust {the
"Master Trust”), pursuant to the Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 and the Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18,
2005 between CIBC Bank and Trust Company [Cayman) Limited and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (FAC) Putnam Diversified Income
Trust (Cayman] {the “Feeder Fund”) is established as a series trust of the Putnam Ofshere Feeder Series Trust {the “Feeder Trust™), pursuant to
the amended and restated Feeder Base Trust Deed dated July 13, 2005 and the Feeder Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 13, 2005 between
MaplesFs Limited and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC. The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered under the Mutual Funds Law (2015
Revision] of the Cayman tslands.

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund operate as 2 masterfieeder fund structure [collectively the *funds”) (each individually a “fund”) whereby
substantially alt of the net assets of the Feeder Fund are invested in units of the Master Fund, These combined financial statements are in respect
of the funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund.

Separate books and records are maintained for each fund in onder fo determing the net asset value for the Feeder Fund, The Feeder Fund has the
same inhierant risks as the Master Fund.

The manager of the funds is The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Manager”), a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State
of Delaware, UL5.A, State Street (the "Custodian®) is the custodian of the funds,

The investment abjective of the funds is to seek as high a level of current income as the Manager believes is consistent with presenvation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds” objective by investing mainty in bonds that are securitized debit instruments and other
obligations of companies and povernments worldwide, are either imvestment-grade or below investmeni-grade (high yvield bonds), and have
intermediate to long-term maturities (three years or longer).

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financial staternents have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reperting Standards ("IFRS") as published
by the International Accounting Standards Board [TIASE"), The principal accounting policies have been applied consistently by the funds for 2l
periods presented, unless otherwise stated. Prior period amaunts may have been reclassified to confarm to the current period presentation,

Current period and prioryear combined financial statements of the funds are presented an a combined basis as management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent one reporting entity ghwen the manner in which the entities are managed. References to the
financial staterments hereafter are to be considered on a combined basis. Intragroup balances and transactions, including incomae, axpenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full,

3. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fallowing is a summary of the significant acceunting and reparting pelicies used in preparing the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared an a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities clas-
sified at fair value through prefit or loss, The preparatien of financial statements in confarmity with IFRS requires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that afect the amounts reparted in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ fram
these estimates.

(a] standards and amendments to existing standards:

IFRS 3 — Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual peripds beginning on or after January 1, 2018). IFRS 2 s the first stenderd issued 25 periofa
wider project to replace 145 39, IFRS % retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes two primary measurement categaories
forfinancial assets; amortized cost and fair value. The besis of classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. The guidande in IAS 3% an impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting continues to apply.
IFRS 9 has been applied retrospectively by the funds and did not result in a change to the classification or measurement of financial instruments.
Financial aszets and liabilities will continue to be measured at fairvalue through profit or loss,

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 10
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(b} Financial instruments

(i) Classification

Thee Master Fund classifies its investments besed on both the Master Fund's business model for managing those financial assets and

the cantractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assats. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance is evalu-
ated on a fairvalue basis. The Master Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’
performance and to make decisions. The Master Fund has not taken the option to irmevocably designate any equity securities as fairvalue
through ather comprehensive income, The contractual cash flows of the Master Fund's debt securities are solely principal and interest,
however, these securities are nelther held for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Master
Fund's business modet's abjective. Consequently, all imvestrments are measured at fair value through prafit or loss. Derivative contracts
that have a negative fair value are presented as Habilities at fairvalue through profit or loss, As such, the Master Fund classifies all of its
imsestment partfolio as financial assets or liabilities as fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the Master Fund commits to purchase or sell
the investment, Imvestments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired and the Master
Fund has transforred substantialby all risks and rewards of owmership. Securities purchased or sold on a farward commitment or delayed
detivery basis may be settled at a future date beyond customary settlement time; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the
securities. Losses may arise due to changes in the fair value of the underlying securities or if the counterparty does not perfarm under
the contract.

Purchases and sales of imestrments awaiting settlernent represent payables for securities purchased and receivables for securities sold
that have been contracted fior but not yet settled or delivered on the statement of financial position date respectively. The due from
brakers balance is held for collection. These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
At each reposting date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts dee from broker at an amount equal to the life-
time expected credit losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance at an amount equal ta 12-month
expected craditlosses, Significant financizl difficulties of the broker, probiability that the broker will enter bankruptoy or inancial recrgani-
sation, and default in payments are all considered indicators that a loss allowance may be required. Iif the credit risk increases to the point
that it is considered to be credit impaired, interest income will be caloulated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss
allawance, A significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is mare than 30 days past due.
Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impained.

(iii} Measurement

Financial assets at fair value throwgh profit or loss ane initially recognized 2t fair value, Transaction costs are recorded in the Statements of
comprehensive income (loss). Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss are measured at fair
value. Gains and |osses arising from changes in the fairvalue of the “Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities 3t fair value through profitor
less’ category are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) in the period inwhich they arise.

Imvestrnents forwhich market quotations are readily available are valued at the |ast reparted sales price on thefr principal exchange, ar
official closing price for certain markets, and are classified as Level 1 securities under Accounting Stondards Codification FRS T Fair Value
Megsirements ond Dickasures (IFRS TL IF mo sales ane reparted, asin the case of some securities that ane traded OTC, & security is valued at
its last reported bid price and is generally categorized as 2 Level 2 security.

Market quatations are not considesed to be readily available for certain debt obligations (including short-term investrnents with remaining
maturities of 60 days or less) and other investments; such investments are valued on the basis of valuations furnished by an independent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Managen, Such services o dealers determine valuations far narmal
imstitutional-size trading units of such securities using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and various rela.
tionships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities [which consider such factors as security prices, yields, matur-
ities and ratings), These securities will generally be categorized 2s Level 2. Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided
by @ single source. Securities quoted in foreign currencies, if any, are translated into ULS, Dollars at the current exchange rate.

The quoted market prices used for finencial assets held by the Master Fund are the current bid price; the appropriste quoted market price
used for the financial liabilities is the current asking price, however quoted markat prices for beth financial assets and financial liabilities
hveld may fall within the bid/ask spread.

To the extent a pricing service a7 dealer is unable tovalue a security or provides avaluation that the Manager does nat believe acou-
rately reflects the security’s fair value, the security will be valued at fairvalue by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedurnes
approved by the Manager. Certain investments, including certain restricted and illiquid securities and derivatives, are also valued at fair
value following procedures approved by the Manager. These valuations consider such factors as significant market or specific security
events such as intergst rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with other securities, discount rates, L5, Treasury, U3, swap
and credit yislds, index levels, convexity expasures, recovery rates, sales and ather multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
classified as Level 2 or &s Level 3 depending on the priority of the significant inputs.
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imrestrnents in collective or other investment funds are valued with reference to their respective net asset value perunit on the relevant
valuation date,

At the end of the reporting peried, the Master Fund's securities and derivatives fairvalued by the Manager totaled 515,264 or <0.01% of the
funds’ net assets and SHil of iabilities (2018: 5100.or <0.01% of the funds’ net assets and SME of liabilities)

{c) Off-setting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reparted in the Staterments of financial pesition when there is a legaily enforceable
right to off-set the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and sattle the liability simultanequsly.

{d} Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Interest is recognised on a time-propartionate basis using the effective interest mothed. Interestincome includes interest from cash and

cazh equivalents. Interest from financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities. Income received from
collective or other investment funds is recorded on the ex-date and retain the character of income as earned by the underiying investment. All
premiums/discounts are amortized/accreted on a yield-to-maturity basis, The Master Fund earned certain fees in connection with its senior loan
purchasing activities, Thesa fees ane treated as market discount and are amartized inta income in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss).

[e) Distribution policy

Distributions to the unitholders from operating prafit/{loss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to unitholders of the Feeder Fund, subject ta the
approval of the Manager. Income distributions, if any, will be made manthly. Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fund are recognized asa
finance cost in the Statements of comprehensive income (oss). Distributions from capital gains, ¥ any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and
paid at least annualky,

(F) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks, including foreign currencies. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to krown amaunts of cash, are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-terrm cagh needs rather than for investments of other porposes. Bank overdrafts, IF amy, are shown as payabie to custodian in the
Starerments of financiz] position.

- e Chprizo
E Cash and cash equivalents | - w9 ME
T | smm 5105,298 |
| usheash | SE0ZB T8
| Cashequivalents |  ATmdsez =
| Totalcash and cash equivalents 548,007,361 $826,016

ig) Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through its custodian, receives delvery of the underlying securities, the fair value of which at the time of purchase is required to
bein an amount at least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. Collateral for certain tri-party repurchase agreements, which totaled
532,409,480 [2018: $39,995,220) at the end of the raporting period, is hald at the counterparty’s custodian in a segregated account for the benefit
of the Master Fund and the counterparty, The Manager is respansible for determining that the value of these underlying securities is at 2ll imes at
least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or bankrugitcy by the ather party to the agreement, retention of
the collateral may be subject to legal proceedings.

{h) Stripped securities

The Master Fund may invest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may be strectured in classes with rights to
receive different portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only securities receive 3ll of the interest and principal-onty securities receive all of
the principal. If the interest-only securities experience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Furd may fail to recoup fully
its initial investment in these securities. Conversely, principal-caly securities increase in value i prepayments are greater than anticipated and
decline if prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fairvalue of these securities is highly sensitive to chanpges in imterest rates.

(i) Foreign currency translation

(i} Functional and Presentation Currency

The acoounting records of the Master Fund and Feeder Fund are maintained in UL5. Dollars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of their redeemable units. The Manager considers the U5, dollar the currency that most faithfully
represants the econamic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The U.S. dollar is the currency in which the funds
measure their performance and report their resufts. This determination also considers the competitive environments in which the funds
are campared to other investrment products, The financial statemants ane presented in LLS, dollars,
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(ii) Transactions and Balances

Fareign currency transactians are translated inte the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the trans-
actions. The cost of each security is determined using historical exchange rates. income, expenses and withholding taxes are translated
2t prevailing exchange rates when earmed or incurred. The Master Fund does not isolate that partion of realized or unrealized gains or
losses resulting from chanpes in the forelgn exchange rate on investments from fluctuations arising fram changes in the market prices

of the securities, Forelgn exchange gains and losses arising from translation and foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income [loss) as Net realized and unrealized gain/{loss) of assets and
[iabilitles in foreign currencies, Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-manetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities at fair value through profit and loss are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) as Net realized and
unrealized gain/ioss) an financial assets and financial lizbilities at fair value through prafit or loss. Investments in foreign securities involve
certain risks, including those related to econamic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency fluctuations, not present
with damestic investments.

{j) TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into TBA (to be announced) commizments to purchase securities for a fieed unit price 2t a future date beyond
custamary settiement time. Although the unit price and par amount have been established, the actual securities have not been specified.
However, it is anticipated that the amaunt of the commitments will nat significantly differ from the principel amount, The Master Fund holds, and
maintaing until settlernent date, cazh or high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income an the securities will not be earned until settiement date.

The Master Fund may also enter into TBA sale commitments to hedge its portfalio positions, to sell mortgage-backed securities it owns under
delayed delivery arrangements or to take a short pasition in mortgage-backed securities, Progeeds of TBA sale commitments are not received
until the contractual settiement date. During the time 2 TBA sale commitment is outstanding, either equivalent daliverable securities or an offset-
ting TBA purchase commitment deliverable on or befare the sale commitment date are held s “cover™ for the transaction, or other Hquid assets in
anamount equal to the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segregated. If the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition
aof an affserting TEA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes a gain ar loss. If the Master Fund dedivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain or a loss from the sale of the securities based upon the unit price established at the date the commitment was
antered int,

TEA commitments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themselves, and imealve a rigk of loss
due to changes in the value of the security prior to the settlement diate as well as the risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not perform
its obligations, Counterparty risk is mitigated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the counterparty.

Unsettled TBA commitments are valued at their fair value according to the procedures described under “Measurement” above. The contractis
marked to market daily and the change in fair value is recorded by the Master Fund 2s an unrealized gain or loss. Based an market circumstances,
the Manager will determine whether to take delivery of the underlying securities or 1o dispose of the TBA commitrments prior to settlement.

4. DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts may serse 25 a component of the Master Fund's investment strategy and are utilized primarily to structure and economically
hedge investments 1o enhance performance and reduce risk to the funds, or for other investment purposes, The Master Fund does not designate
any derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS 9 and hence these derivative financial instruments are classi:
fied atfairvalue through profit or loss, The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hald or issue include, but are not limited to, forwards,
futures, options, certain currency transactions and swap contracts.

The Master Fund entered into options contracts. Losses may arise fram changes in the value of the underlying instruments if there is an illiquid
socandary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform, If
2 written call option is exercised, the premium ariginally received is recorded as an addition to sales proceeds, If a written put option is exercised,
the premium ariginally received is recarded as a reduction to the cost of investments, Exchange-traded options are valued at the last sale price
or, if mo sales are reported, the last bid price for purchased options and the [ast ask price far written options, OTC traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar 1o options on securities except that the premium paid or received isto buy or grant the
Fight to enter into & previously agreed upon interest rate or credit default contract. Forward premium swap option cantracts include premiums
that have extended settlement dates, The delayed settlement of the premiums is factored into the daily valuation of the cption contracts. in

the case of interest rate cap and floor contracts, in return for @ premium, ongoing payments between two parties are based on interest rates
exceeding a specified rate, in the case of a cep contract, or falling below a specified ratein the case of a flaor contract.

The Master Fund entered into futures contracts. Losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlying instrumants, if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, ifinterest or exchange rates mave unexpectediy or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to perform.
With futures, there is minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures are exchanpe traded and the exchange’s clearinghouse, as coun-
terparty to all exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures against default, Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of finan-
cial position, When the contract is closad, the Master Fund records a realized gain or (oss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed, Futures contracts arevalued at the quaoted daily settlement prices established
by the exchange on which they trade, The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchange an amaount of cash equal to the daily flucteation in the
valee of the futures contract, Such receipts or payments are known as “variation margin.
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The Master Fund buys and sells farward currency contracts, which ane agreements between two parties to buy and sell currencies at a set price
on a future date, The LS. dollar value of forward currency contracts is determined using current forward currency exchange rates supplied by a
quokation service, The fairvalue of the contract will fluctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contract is marked to market daily
and the change in fairvaiue is recorded as an unsealized gain or loss. The Master Fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the diference
between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed when the contract matures or by delivery of
the currency. The funds could be exposed to risk if the value of the currency changes unfavorably, if the counterparties to the contracts are unable
to meet the terms of thelr contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter into a closing position. Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statements of financial pesition.

The Master Fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, which are arrangements between two parties to
exchange cash flows based on a notional principal amount. An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an
upfront prermivm, For OTC interest réte swap contracts, an upfront peyment received Dy the Master Fund is recorded as a liability on the Master
Fund's boaks. An upfront payrment made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund's books. OTC and centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts are marked o market daily based upon quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers, Any
change is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps. Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared interest rate swaps
are settled through a central clearing agent and are reconded in variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unreal-
ized gain or loss, Payments, including upfront premiums, received or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the reset date or the closing
of the contract, Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may include extended affective dates, Payments related to thess
swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract, The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes
im the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central cleasing agency or a
clearing member defaults, in the case of centrally cleared interest rate Swap contracts, on its respective obligation to perform under the contract.
The funds’ masimam risk of loss from counterparty risk or central clearing risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC
interest rate swap contracts by having a master netting arrangemint between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared
interest rate swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund and other resaurces that are available in the event of a clearing member
default, Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of finencizl position,

The Master Fund entered inta OTC and/for centrally cleared tatal return swap contracts, which ane arrangements 1o exchange a market-linked
return for a periodic payment, both based on a notional principal amount. To the extent that the total return of the security, index or other finan-
cial measure underlying the transacticn exceeds or falls short of the offsetting interest rate abligatian, the Master Fund will recefve a payment
from or make a payment 1o the counterparty, OTC andfor centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked 1o market daily based upon
guotations from anindependent pricing service or market makers. Any change is recorded a3 an unrealized gain or boss on OTC total return swaps.
Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared tatal return Swaps are settled through a central clearing agent and are reconded invariation
margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded 25 unrealized gain or loss. Payments received of made are recorded as realized gains
or losses, Certain OTC andfor centrally cleared total return swap cantracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related to these swap
contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the
fluctuation of interest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index, the possibility that there is no liquid market for these agreements

or that the counterparty may default an its obligation to perform, The funds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk or central clearing risk
is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total return swap contracts by having 2 master netting arrangament between
the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin.

There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally clezred total return swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund and
other resources that ane available inthe event of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amaounts recognized on the Statements of
financial positon.

The Master Fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts. In OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts, the
protection buyer typically makes a periodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection sefler, in exchange for the right to recelve 2
contingent payment upon the occurrence of a credit event on the reference obligation or all ather equally ranked obligations of the reference
entity. Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptey, failure to pay, restructuring and obligation acceleration, For OTC credit
default contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is reconded as 2 liability on the Master Fund's books. An upfront payment
made by the Master Fund is recorded as an asset on the Master Fund’s books. Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the same rights
to the pratection buyer and seller except the payments between parties, including upfront premiums, are settled through 2 central clearing agent
through variation margin payments. Upfrant and periodic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centrally cleared credit
default contracts are recarded as realized gains or [osses at the reset date or close of the contract. The OTC and centrally cleared credit default
contracts are marked o market daily besed wupon guotations from an independent pricing service or market makers, Any change in value of OTC
credit default contracts is recorded as an unnealized gain or boss. Daily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts are
recarded in variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss., Upon the occurrence of a credit
event, the diffierence between the parvalue and fairvalue of the reference pbligation, net of any proportional amaunt of the upfront payment, is
recorded as a realized gain or lass, In addition to bearing the risk that the credit event will oocur, the funds could be expased to market risk due
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to unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index or the possibility that the Master Fund may be unable to
chose out its position at the same time or at the same price asif it had purchased the underlying reference obligations. In certain circurnstances,
the Master Fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss. Risks of loss may
exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position. The funds” maximurn risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the protec-
tion seller or asthe protection buyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit default contracts by having 2 master
netting arrangemnent between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through the daily exchange
ofvariation margin, Counterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally ceared credit default swap contracts due to the clearinghouse
guarantee fund and other resources that are available in the event of 3 clearing member default. Where the Master Fund is a seller of protectian,
the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund may be requined to make is equal to the notional 2amount.

Income refated to swap contracts is accrued based on the terms of the contract, Receivables and payables related to closed swap contracts
are presented in the Financial Assets or Liabilities at fairvalue through profit or loss line items on the Statements of financial position. Realized
and unrealized gains and lesses on derivative contracts are inclueded in Net realized and unrealized gaingloss) on financial assets and financial
ligbilities at fairvalue through profit or loss,

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognized on the Statements
of financial pasition, but they do not necessarily indicate the ameunts of future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments
and da not therefare indicate a fund's exposure to credit or market price risks. The derivative Instruments become favorable [assets) or unfavar-
able (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amaount of derivative financial instrurments on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable or unfaverable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and lizbilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

5. TAXATION

Thie Master Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are primarily domiciled in countries ather than the Cayman Islands. Marny of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indicats that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents, such as the funds, Typically, these
capital gains taes are required to be determined on 2 self-assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Master Fund's
brokers on a withholding basis.

In accordance with BAS 12 — Income Taxes, the funds are reguired to recognize a tau liability when it is probable that the tax laws of foreign coun-
tries require a tax liability to be assessed an the funds’ capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taxing autherities
have full knowledge of ail the facts and circumstances, The tax liability is then measured at the amount expectad to be paid to the relevant
tenation authorities using the tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period. Thene i
sometimes uncertainty about whether or niot a tax liability will ultimarely be paid by the funds. Therefore, when measuring any uncertain tax
liabilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence the likelihood of payment,
including any formal or informal practices of the refevant tax authorities.

At April 30, 2019 and April 30, 2008, the funds had no significant uncertain tax liability positions with respect to foreign capital gains tanes.

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

At the end of the reporting periods, April 30, 2019 and April 20, 2018, thie Master Fund had Class 5 and Class | Units available for issue, Unless the
Manager determines atherwise, the minimaurm initial investment for Class 515 300 Units and the minimum sulbrsequent subscription shall be 10
Units, provided that the absolute minimum initial investments shall be USS50,000 or its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determines otherwise, the minimum number of Class | Unitsthat can be subscribed for by way of initial investment shall be 1,000,000
Units, the minimum aggregate value of the initial investment shall be US$10,000,000 and the minimum number of Units that can be subscribed for
by way of subsequent investment shall be 10,000 Units. The absolute minimum aggregate value of the initial investment in Class | Units that the
Manager may determine shall be US550,000.

The Feeder Fund has unlimited Units of cagital. Each Unit will represent an undivided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund. MaplesFS Limited
{the “Feeder Fund Trustee”), at the direction of the Manager, shall have the power to designate and issue Units from time to time by reference toa
separate Class ang/or series and determing the manner in which Units of any Class andjor series differ from Units of any other Class andfor series.
Thie Feeder Fund currently has two Classes of Units, Class J and Class M Units, which are investors into Class 5 of the Master Fund, Class M Units
are sold with 2 maximum front-end sales charge of 3,25% and do nat pay a contingent deferred sales charge [CDSC). Class J Units do nat pay a
front-end sales charge and are subject to a COSC of up to 4.00% if those Units are redeemed within five years of purchase, Uniess the Manager
determines atherwise, the minimum initial investment for Class J (COSC) and Class M Units shall be 300 Units and the minimum subsequent
subscriptions shall be 10 Units.
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The net azsetvalue of each classis caloulated by dividing the net assets attributable to the holders of redeernable units of a particular class of
Lnits, with the total number of outstanding redeemable units of that class. In accordange with the provisions of the funds’ governing documents,
imvestment positions are valued based on the bidfask market price for the purpase of determining the net asset value per unit far subscriptions
and redemptions. Proceeds and payments for redeermable participating units issued and redeemed are shown as movements in the Statements
of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units, The Feeder Fund generally provides its unitholders with the
right to redeern their interest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date (generally daily) for cash equal to the proportionate share of the net asset
value of the Feeder Fund, The Manager, the Transfer Agent or other delegate of the Manager reserves the right to reject any application far Units
without stating any reason for daing so. The Feeder Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable at the holder's option and are classified
as financial liabilities. The redeemalble units are carried 2t the redemption amount that is payable at the end of the reporting period, if the holder
exercises the right to put the unit back to the funds.

Unit transactions for the years were as follows;

" MasterFund Class S Class|
April 30 April 30
i == 019 018 2019 2018
| Units outstanding at beginning of year ' 58906726 £6433311 1,085 1,085
' Unitsissued ' ' 2,880,875 2523005 | - -
| Units redeemed 15,734,264) (10,040,500 | = -
 Units outstanding at end of year | 56,053,237 5,906,726 1,096 1,085
Feeder Fund Class J Class M __
Aprii30 april 20
2019 2008 2015 2018
| Uit outstanding at beginring of year EBOM910 | 80202785 | 3387770 23 |
| Unitsissued =1 sA0TE20 | 6354910 3132540
Units redeemed o | BESLATO | (smuue) | (oas0l 1168.260)
' Units gutstanding at end of year 60,047,420 68,909,290 | 10,035,420 3,387,770

At April 30, 2019 and 2018, 100% of the Feeder Fund's Class | redesmable units were hetd by one unaffiliated imaestor and 100% of the Feeder
Fund's Class M redeemable umits were held by one unaffilizted Investor. At April 30, 2019 and 2018, 100% of the Master Fund's Class 5 redeemable
unitsware held by the Feeder Fund. At April 30, 2019, 1009 of the Master Fund's Class | redeemable units were held by an affiliate of the Manager
{2008 10054}

T. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to the unitholders are made at the discretion of the Managerin an amount and at such time as determined to be appropsiate. At the
end of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Master Fund Class S amounted to 525,805,905 or S0.4486 per unit (2018: 527,324,898 or $0.441
per unit). At the end of the reporting period, there were no dividends paid to Class | (2018: SMil),

At the end of the reparting period, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class J and Class M amounted to 522 872,771 ar $0.357 per unit (2018:
426,642,564 or $0.36 por unit) and 52,903,446 or $0.404 per unit (2018: 5445,027 or 50408 per unit), respectively, Distributions from the Feeder
Fund are recognized in the Statements of comprehensive ingome (loss) as a finance cost.

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The funds have investment guidelines that set out their overall business strategies, their toferance for risk and their general risk management
phitosophy. The funds’ financial assets and liabilities ar fair value comprise the Master Fund's financial instruments which may include:

+  Investments including fixed-income securities, floating rate securities and equity securities;
«  Bonds that are securitized debtinstruments and other obligations of companies and governments worldwide,
Cash and short-term investments; and

«  Derivative transactions which the Master Fund enters into to manage the intérast rate and currency risks arising from the Master Fund's
imvestmient activities.
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{a) Market price risk

Whle it is the intention of the Manager to implement strategies which are designed to minimize patential losses, there can be no assurance that
these strategies will be successful. It is possible that an investor may lose 2 substantial propertion or all of its investment. As 3 result, each investor
shauld carefulty cansider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds,

The funds are exposed to market risk (which includes market price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk), bguidity risk and credit or default
risk. The funds’ risk management process consists of a multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checks and balances.
The Manager performs periadic reviews and agrees on policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below, These policies
have remained substantially unchanged since the beginning of the period to which these financial statemants relate.

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainty about fusure prices af financial instruments held, It represents the potential loss the funds might suffer
threugh halding market pasitions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investment or factars affecting all
instruments traded in the market. The Manager considers the asset allocation of the funds in order to minimize the risk associated with particular
countries or industry sectors while continuing to follow the funds’ investment chjective through a careful selection of securities and ather finan-
cial instruments within specified limits, Markst risk can also potentially be mitigated through derivative contracts entered into by the funds, The
Manager measures bath the Master Fund's tatal risk as well as their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark.

Under normal market conditions, the Manager expects to invest 15%-65% of the Master Fund's net assets in each of thess three sectors: U5,
and irvestment-grade sector - LS. government securities and investment-grade bonds of U.S. companies, High yield sector - lowerrated
bonds of LL.5. companies, and International sector - bonds of foreign governments and companies, including bath investment grade and
lower-rated securities.

At the end of the reporting period, investments in LS. securities were approximately B6% (2018: approximately 86%).

At the end of the reporting periods, the funds’ national expasure an derivative contracts were as follows:

April 20
008 08
Puschased interest rate TBA commitment option contracts [contract amount) T smomopl S27M00000
Puchessd curencyoptons omnctamoun) _ sese =
| Purchased interest rae swap option contracts [contract amound) Ll | =R
! WWiritien Interest rabe TBA commitment option contracts (contmas amount) $200,000,000 407,000,500
! Written interest rate swap option contracts (contract amount) ) 997907 082 $2,501,618.410
Futures comracts {number of contracts) - | 491 | 3w
' Forwand currency eontracts (eontract amount)® - 5354195334 5§E59,854 805
OTCintecest mieswap contacisfootional) | SispeRp31 SLIEAAM
Centaly clearedinteest ate snap convacts otions) L smesnr 53584448175
OTC toa et st ate swap coniacts nctonal) . samm 3235214
P ————— T cames oo
OFC cregin default contracts - protection purchased (notional] T $2E,815,000
OFC cregit defaull contracts - pratection sold (notional) 5200, 740,000 575,755,000
| Centrally cleared credit Sefault contracts - protection puschased (notionall S17.930.000 515,388,000

* Forthe year ended Apel 30, 2019, the Master Fund's notional expasure as a percent of net asset value was as follows: Euro sells: 15.43%, Japanese Yen sefls
1211%. For the year ended April 30, 2018, the Master Fund's national expedure 35 b percent of net assel value was as fatlows: Australian dellar buys: 16.90%,
Eur buiys 18.68%, Euro sells 13.73%, Swedish Krona sells: 14.40%. There are no other concentrations to currency risk in excess of 109 of KAV a5 a result of
forward derivative notionals.
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Thevaleme of activity far the reporting periods for any derfvative type that was held during the period is listed below and were as follows based
an an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

April 30
i ' T 2019 2018
'_Huthmimmmmnpmmms[mﬁmmnﬂ = 5208,500,000 526,500,000
| Purchased currency options (contract amount) I T %a1,100000 539,300,000 i
* Purthased swap option contracts [contract amoent) T s19700000 $3,042,400,000
Wﬂmmmmtqﬁmm&muaumt} SHB200000 0 S47A00M00
| Written cmopm {contract amourt] ' 520,600,000 539800000
| Wiiten swap option comtracts fcontract amount) = T sgmaop $2,639,500,000
Futures contracts {rumiber of contracts) - ] 400 100
| Forward Curmency contracts (contract amaunt) . $442,800,000 $557,100,000
OTC intarest rate swap contracts [notional] - 54,100,000 sipmp0
Centrally clesred interest rte swap Contracts (notional) £2,845,000,000 §2,716,400,000
OTC total feturn swap contracts (netional) ' 581,800,000 ' §151,700,000
Cmﬂ'alhy-:lemdml et wmmino&wu — O sEea00pe0 5122000000
MLdeﬁaultwwminmﬂ : $1.29,700,000 $104,000,0600
| Cenally cleared credit default contracts {national) 516500000 | S16,700,000

Aggregate Value at risk

TheValue at Risk [VaR) risk measure estimates the maximum expected loss in pre-taxation prafit over a given holding period for a specified confi-
dence level, TheVaR methodology is a statistically defined, prabability-based approach that takes into account market volatilities s well as risk
diversification by recognizing offsetting posstions and correlations between products and markets. Risks can be measured consistently across
all markets and products, and risk measures can be aggregated to arrive at a single risk number, Given the interdependencies between market
variables, the Master Fund also estimates thie VaR or threshold koss that is mot expected to be exceeded 2t the 99th percentile confidence level
owver a 1-day horizon. The Manager uses a proprietary multi-factor model to estimate the active risk (alse referred to as tracking error) fram which
VaR estimates can be analytically derived. The VaR estimates presented below are point-in-time and vary over time a5 a function of market and
portfolio compasition changes and ane representative of activity during the period,

Given its reliance on historical data, VaR is most effective in estimating risk exposures in markets in which there are no sudden fundamental
changes or sudden shifts in market conditions. An inherent limftation of VaR s that the distribution of past changes in market risk factars may
not produce accurate predictions of future risk. Different VaR methodologies and distributional assumptions could produce a materially different
VaR, Moreower, VaR calculated for a one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be guidated or offset
with hedges within one day. Changes in VaR between reporting periods are generally due to changes in bevels of expasure, volatilities and for
cosrelations among asset classes.

The table below shows the VaR of the Master Fund at April 30, 2019 and April 30, 2018, as well as the Bloomberg Barclays U5, Aggregate Bond
Index” at April 30, 2018 and the ratio between the two measures (also referred to a5 relative VaR) for the period ending April 30, 2018,

Portfolin ] Benchmark® T Ratio
 April20, 2019 fa4d W o
April 30, 2018 0.57 058 104

* AsofMovember I, 2018, the Master Fund's benchmark changed from the Bloomberg Barclays LS, Aggregate Band Index 1o the ICE BofaML LS. Treasury
Bill Index,

== Effective Nowember 1, 2018, the Master Fund uses a cash egubvalent benchmark, therefore VaR of the benchmark and VaR ratio are not refevant.
The factor risk breakdown, for the Master Fund for bath start and end of the review periad is presented in the table below, The risk decompasition
is based on expected annualized volatility (1 standard deviation). Active Risk (or Estimated Tracking Error “TE") measures the predicted stan-

dard deviation of the return difference between the portiolio and the benchmark using the current pesitions of each and the risk model's factor
covaniance matrix

Portlslis Benchmark® ' Estimated TE
April 30, 2019 Total Risk 130 : 011 331
April 30, 2018 Total Risk 36T _ R 5.40

* Asal Movernber 1, 2018, the Master Fund’s benchenark changed froem the Bloomberg Barclays US. Aggregate Bond Index 1o the ICE BalAML U.S, Treatury
Bill index
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{b) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fairvalue or future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fuctuete due to changes in foreign exchenge rates, The
risk arises on financial instrumants that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in which they are measured. A portion
of the funds’ assets are held in cumrencies other than the base currency with the result that the funds” Statements of financial position can be
significantly affected by currency movements,

Non-base currency exposures (excluding the notional impact of forwand currency contracts) are detailed in the tables below, Monetary assets
represent investments that can be converted into monetary terms in avery short periad of time, In the tables below, Mon-Monatary assets include
the fairvalue of the Master Fund's portfolio investments. Monetary assets and liabilities include the unrealized appreciation and depreciation of
TBA sale commitments and derivative contracts, Forward currency eentracts areentered into as a method of reducing currency risk.

. Foreign Currency Risk at the end of the reporting period April 30, 2019

| Assets — = ~ Hen-Monetary  Maonetary Total
| AgentinePess _§340764 S N (NS f _ S3ADTed
| AustrafianDoliar i = | EALS | 96,181
| BitshPound 3s0462 291479 B5LA4L
| Canadian Dalfar i = 238,519 55T
| ChinesaYuan [Dfishore) - 9,330 ELE ]
| Czech Koruna = 53535 63536
| Euro 23650446 4g1m 2AT2157
MongKengols - R s
| leraeli Shekel T | aa1s | 4415
Japaneseven - 1037645 LO3TE45
iew_i__e‘a'l-ﬂ[}c_la_r - = 110,132 110,112
Norwegian Keone - | - 1< S o BmL !
‘Swedish Krona - 763,08 763001
SwissFranc 1 A | B/ | 29,75
524,351,672 o sTEeTAeA SRLBARS3E
| Liabilities | Non-Monetary Monetary . Total
_Australian Dollar . 5= L SLised 51254438
British Pound - S69,8493 TG 952
Canadian Doflar - | B970L | 89791
Corechioruma | - SR Ea—— Lo L b 131218
Eura - 7410325 7410325
HorgKong Dollar - . 258 258
Japanese en I . 525,283 o sasaes
| New Zealand Dollar - - 242723 22113
| Norwegian Krone = 330,833 el
| SwedishKrana 1 000000o0- 000 wae 102
| SwissFranc - N - S 195,424
e - = i - §11,263,188 $11,263,188
| Currency N _ MWon-Monetary . Monetary B _Total
Argenting Peso 5— 542,115 SE2,115
British Pound - 1465 1465
Canadian Dollar | - 3 &
Crach Maduna - 44 44
Euro | - B7,141 47141
- 5— $170,771 $170,77L
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~ Monetary Total
f— 52463819
AR B . 1.
_ seEes 902,344
4T0.511 1372487
9869 525,38
1971517 22,904,958
1515 1515
2T 272,878
seeger sase
58,376 498,376
2 120
2818732  apam
Swiss Franc - - B - B7.74 I £1.724
$24,725,523 §7,363,546 $22,089,069
Lisbilities ! Hon-Monstary Monstary Total
Australian Dollar 5= AREETE ﬁl.lﬂé]ﬁ
Bragilian Real - 532,759 532,758
British Pound - 1,439,428 1499428
| Canadian Doliar = . B .
| Chingge Yyan (Offshace) - 4,103 24,103
| Ewo . B =  samss . samests
| HongKong Doiar o= mas | M
Japanese Yen - B46,T03 646,103
| Malaysian Ringgit =2 338 3688
| Mexican Peso | —a 29556 ta L=
Mofwegian Krone - T3RE3 7RG
' Russizn Ruble | - 93,934 93,934
South Alrican Rand = 174,534 174534 ;
| el Hecien E - L 5651
Swiss Franc - 12,335 12,335
£ e e 511,998,456 S1LS8BASE
Currency Non-Monetary Monetary Total
| Asgeniting Peso $=  S100.310 . $100,310
British Pound = . e g5
Canadian Dollar ~ 6 &
il bk = 43 A
L Eurp : S i B, |, I S, | ... 48
$— §105,298 $105,298

(¢} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The risk arises on financial instruments whose fair value or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates, Short-tarm
securities are less sensitive to intanest rate changes than longer-term securities, but they also usually offer lower yietds. A portion of the Masier
Fund's financial assets and liabilities are debtinstruments with floating interest rates, which, in thit Manager's opinion, are generally less sensitive
to interest rate changes but may decline in value if their interest rates do not rise as much, or as quickly as interest rates in general, Convarsely,
floating rate instruments will not generally increase in vatue if interest rates decline. Changes in interest rates will also affect the amount of interest

income the Master Fund eams on its floating rate investments.
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High yield securities risk

The Master Fund invests in fixed income securities rated Baa3 or lower by Moody's or BEB- or lower by S&F (commonly known as *junk® ar *high
yield” bonds). These securities are considered speculative and, while generally providing greater income than investment in higher-rated secu-
rities, invalve greater risk of principal and income (including the pessibility of default or banknuptcy of the issuers of such securities) and may
involve greater valatility of price [especially during pericds of sconomic uncertainty or change) than securities in the higher rating categories.
Because yields vary over time, no speciic level of income can ever be assured, These lower-rated, high yielding fived income securities generally
tend to reflect econamic changes (and the cutlook for economic growth), short-term corporate and industry developments and the market's
perception of their credit guality (especially during times of adwerse publicity] to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarity
to fluctuations in the general level of interest rates (although these lower rated fixed income securities are also effected by changes in interest
rates]. In the past, economic downturns or an increase in interest rates have, under certain cincumstances, caused a higher incidence of defauit by
the issuers of these securities and may do soin the future, especially in the case of highly leveraged issuers.

Payment risk

The Issuers of debt securities held by the Master Fund may be able to call 2 bond or prepay principal due on the securities, particularty during
periods of declining interast rates, The Master Fund may not be able to reinvest that principal at attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Fund, amd the Master Fund may lose any premium paid. The Master Fund would also lose the banefit of falling interest rates on price of the prepaid
bond. On the other hand, rising interest rates may cause prepeyments to occur at slower than expected rates. This efectively lengthens the
maturities of the affacted securities, making them more sensitive to interest rate changes and the Master Fund’s net asset value more volatile,
Securities subject 1o prepayment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rates decline, and may offer greater potential for loss
whien interest rates rise.

Thie tables below present the interest rate profile of the Statements of financial position categorized by maturity dates. (Table values do not
include Commaon Stocks fair value of $15,164: 2018 5104,378)

Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2019
Less than Over Non-interest
Lyear 1-5years Syears bearing Total
Assets i
| Cashand cashequivalents S4TTED,562 - 5— £1267193 548,007,361
Saiesofinvestments awaiting
settlernent - - - 156,206,166 156,206,166
Fiagetvable for variation masgin
on futures contracts 18,240 - - - 18,240
Interest and other receivables - - - 4,579,519 4515519
Firameis] Asaets st fair vlue
through profit or loss 58,730,540 64,711,313 E27,005,824 2410063 753,857,740
I'otil.m 5107,529,342 564,711,313 | 5S62T,005,824 5163,422,547 5962,669,006
Liabilitles
Purchases of imestments
anwaiting settliament S o S| 526,876,665 | §265 516,665
Redemptions of units awaiting
settiernent - - - 7,337 1337
Payabie for variation margin
an centrally cleared swap
contracts 347541 — — - 47,841
Cellateral on certain derivative
coiracts, atvalue L _ LmEzm 207,155 242,158 = 2252736
| Pa_u.-ab}e{nr manﬂeﬂent_l'ei_ - - - - 583,334 583,334
_Payable o custodian - - - 4743 4743
Payalbie for custody and
administrative fees = - - W08 822 i)
Oither actrued expenses - - - 353,684 250,684
Financial Liabilities a2 fairvalue
through profit or loss 4,749,794 4 TREOTT _31.4,2?4,198 L= I,.?E_EB:I_?___ : _1_2‘.5,!315\,330
Total liabilities [excluding
net assets attributable to
~ holders of redeemable units) 56,200,557 55,673,832 5214,445,351 $269,337,402 5495,658,142
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| Interest Rate Risk April 30, 2008 ]
' Lessthan Cver Hon-interest
o 1year 1-5years | Syears bearing Total
CMssets i
Cash and cash equivalents 5= = | 55— SBZEDIE - S-HIE'ME
Sales of investments awaiting |
settlement = - | - 95,108,773 95,109.773
Subseriptions of units awaiting [
seulemt - = | - 1,675,258 | 1,678,258
Receivable for variation masgin [ =
on futures contracts 1885 = e e 11,395
Interest and other receivatiles - - - 5,775,963 5,775,963
Financial Assets at fair value
through prodit or loss 52,283,535 54.45¢.1_T1 555@02.‘._1:{! _3,?_3;.49; E?E.Eﬁ;_ﬂ_? 2
Totalassets 62,301,830 $54,451,171 sssspoz024  swmiaser  S1evsesAn
| Liabilities
| Purchases of investments
awEling setthement S 5— = 562,327,549 5162327545
Redemptions of units awaiting
settlernent - — - 674,978 614976
Payaisle for variation margin
on centrally cheared swap
contracts 3hadl - - - 31441
Collateral on certain dervative
contracts, atvalua 330,000 58,259 1250545 = 1,535,844
Payable for management fees == =] - 1,341,065 1,341,065
Payabie for custody and
adminizirative fees - < — 56,539 95,539
Crther accrued expenses | - -] - 377,983 3ITSA3 ]
Financaal Liabalities at fair value |
through profitor less £41,730 TIELIZE 11285885 3755162 124,593 815
Total liabilities [excluding
net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units) 993,171 §7,799,537 5114,117,230 $168,523,176 £291,433,214

Non-base interest rate exposures (excluding the netional impact of interest rate swap contracts) are detailed in the tables above. Interest rate

swap contracts are entered into a5 a methad of reducing interest rate fisk.

April 30

. Interest Income ) o . — = I;l'ﬁ- il m"

| Cashand casheguivalems” - 51,234,458 5255681
Debt sacurities

| Atfairvatue through profitor loss = 27,855,903 31,555,384

" Total 525,094,361 §31,811,065

* Thie Master Fund had no imerest ingome from imestments in affiliated issuers for the periods ending April 30, 2019 and 2018,

(d) Liquidity risk

This iz the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associzted with financial Hiabilities, The main liability of the funds

is the redemption of any units that investars wish to sell, The Master Fund's financial instruments that include imeestments in OTC derivative
contracts, If any, which are not traded in an organized public market, may be illiquid. As a result, the Master Fund may not be able to prompihy
ligquidate some of their investments in these instruments at an amaunt close to their fair value in crder to mest their liquidity requirements or to

respond to specific events such as deterioration in the credit worthiness of any particularissuer.

Ta minimize or mitigate the efect of liquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-position the portfalio or adjust the

aliacation to obtain a higher concentration of mode liquid and viable securities as detailed in the investment objective.
Pursuant to the funds’ investment policy, the Manager ks to manitar on an ongoing basis the funds’ liquidity position.

Putrarm Diversified Income Trust Funds [Cayman)
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The tables below analyze the funds' assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining pericd at the Statements of
financial position date ta the contractual maturity date, The amounts in the tables are the contractuad undiscounted cash flows. (Tablevalues do
not include Comman Stocks falr value of $15,164; 2018 $104,326)

| Liquidity Risk I S . . ... ... S
Less than Graater than
- 1 Month 1-3 Months 3 Months Total

' Total Assets $235,107,133 $25,018,409 §T02,543,484 | $962,669,026
| Liabilities |
Iﬁlﬂase_sdmunmmaiﬁf_lg-sett-mmt ' 26576665 - = 266,876,665
Redemptions of units awaiting settbemant N 731w | - - ' 77
e oo Mg on sy et vy | ]
| ConmetE | ol ol == St R el
!_E"_:'Elffr_ijl”" uertaln denvauw l:untra-cts.al:'ﬂlul . B 98,000 | - 1AT0.736 2252736
L Payable for managernentfees 1 563334 | - Y et A . 58333
Fayablemmmdmrl | 4,743 - =] 4,143
Payable for custody and administrative fees o ws | - | - 09,822
Other accried expenses 255684 | - =11 [ I50EEL
[ r;;:_.ifﬁb.ﬂ:é;;mmtueww profitorloss 46?‘;92 | 1,233,564 . ZidamEm | 225,015,880
l.."%‘E’f‘f‘f?ﬁ‘.’.‘?ﬂ‘.‘?!‘-‘fﬁF?F?Pt!.?i‘fi@.’”b‘e“’“f 461,006,048 =4 e} o Lk
| Total _ | emesmies | $LMNSEE | faaesassss | jeea.cedia
| Liguidity Risk N spilz0 208
[ Less than Greaterthan
1 1 Month 1-3 Months IMonths | Total
| Total Assets i 155,089,246 524,211,628 §620,357,553 | 579,658,427
' Lisbilities _ §
| Purchases of investments awaiting settlement wanse | = - 162,377,548
..Hrdemofumuamm.gmﬂemmi 574,978 - =l a74.978
..Payablehrmnalmmrpnmcaﬂlrwdemmp 1 ] o ___ B

| cnﬂtracts 31441 _ - = | 31,441
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, ot value 330,000 - 1,315,844 _.__  1E35844
| Parablelnrmanaggmemfees 1.}_11.955_ | - B = | _I..}il.ﬂl_!i:i
Pl;mblninrmmdywmmmmm!ﬂs 96,539 | - = | 96,535
Other accrued axpenses . s . - - 327543
Fimancial LiabGities at fairvalue through profit or loss - 58,727 3,245,145 120,947,043 ! 124,003,815
. He;llsse‘tsatt:ihutlbh.tl.:hn-lder;nfm&ém;ab.leu-nlts' . 508,305 541 - - | 508,325,541
e MJM e | iy

* Net Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units is 3 puttable iability which is classified as less than one month mmhll:h-snnn{ﬂnuamal and could
extend indefinitely.

{e) Credit risk

The funds will be expesed to a credit risk on parties with whom they trade and will also bear the risk of settlement default. The risk of default an
securities traded is considered minimal as delivery of securities sold is only made when the broker has received payment. Fayment ismadeona
purchase when the securities have been received by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to mest its obligation.

The funds seek to mitigate their credit risk by undertaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Manager
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers to be established. Risks associated with derivative contracts, if any, involve the possibility that
the counterparty to the contract may default on its obligation to perform.

The fair value of collateral that has been accepted by the Master Fund related to sutstanding repuschase agreements is 532,400,480 2018
538,985,220,

Putrnam Diversified Incame Trust Funds [Cayrman) 3
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The Master Fund generally invests in financial assetswhich have a credit rating assigned by well-known rating agencies.

| Percentage of Net Assets
i Rating | April 30 . . R
! I e 2018
| AnafRaa 40.26% I I 32.35% ]
A;Ju - 218 - _
Cas 042 - ass
| B8B/Baa _ 1008 8.85
Tﬁ.raam—__ - — 1 2428 213
¥ | 185 2005
CCCACaa and below 4.52 e
e i 1442 54 ]
P 679 - _ - 768 -
Unrated® _ {1511 (T
' 100.00% 190.00%

* lIn arder o manitar the credit guality of the *Unrated” underlying debt securities, the Manager, on the basis of the internal reseanch, preparesits own ratings for
the various instrurents farwhich publicly available credit ratings are not available. The Manager reviews the key financial metrics of the issue and structural
features of the instruments in order to calcutate the implied ratings for sach of these instruments, Cath, devivative ingtruments and net other 835815 ase shown
in the Unrated category. Payables and receivables for TRAmortgage commitments are included In the Unrated category and may result in negative weights,
Uinrated debt securities have been assessed by the investrment manages 1o have credit quality consistent within B/B and CCC/Caa and below rated secuities.

Credit qualities are shown as a percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of April 30, 2019 and 2018. A bond rated Baa or higher [Prime-3
or higher, for short-term debt) is considered investment grade. This chart reflects “best” ratings between Moody's, Standard & Poor’s (S&F)
and Fitch, showing ratings based on S&P lettering. TBA mortgape commitments, If any, are included based on their issuer ratings. Ratings and
portiolio credit quality will vary over time,

The funds themsehes have nat been rated by an independent rating agency.

The credit crisis could have animpact on the Master Fund's remaining securities if ather counterparties are forced to file for bankruptcy or are
otherwise unable to perform their abligations. The funds are exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay
amounts in full when they fall due,

Thee funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and amounts due from brokers
and ather receivable balances. The funds® maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, esther as the protection seller or as the protection buyer,
is the fair value of the derivative contracts. This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having & master netting arrangement between the Master
Fund and the counterparty, Where the Master Fund is 2 seller of protection, the maximum patential amount of future payments the Master Fund
may be required to make is equal to the netional amaunt of the relevant derivative contract,

The Mester Fund is @ party to ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.} Master Agreements that gevenn OTC derivative and
fareign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that govern transactions inwolving mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may result in delayed delivery (Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entered into from time te time.
The Master Agreements may Contain provisions regarding, amaong ather things, the parties’ general obligations, representations, agreements,
callateral requirernents, events of default and early termination, With respect to certain counterparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreements, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held in a segregated account by the funds’ custodian, The Master Fund's collateral is
delivered to the counterparty by either pledging or transferring collateral to the counterparty. Collatera! can bein the form of cash ordebt secu-
rities isswed by the LS, Gowernment or related agencies or other securities as agreed ta by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requirements are determined based on the Master Fund's net position with each counterparty, With respect to 13DA Master Agreements,
termination events applicable to the Master Fund may coour upon 2 decline in the Master Fund’s net assets below a specified threshold over a
certain period of time. Termination events applicable 1o counterparties may occur upon a decline in the counterperty’s long-term or short-term
credit ratings belaw a specified level. In each case, upon ocourrence, the other party may elect to terminate early and cause settlement of all
derivative and foreign exchange contracts outstanding, including the payment of any losses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determined by the terminating party. Any decision by one or more of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early termination could
impact the Master Fund's future derfvative activity.

At the close of the reporting period, the Master Fund had a net liability position of 36,229,441 (2018 57,732 671) on open derfvative contracts
subject to the Master Agreements. Coliateral posted by the Master Fund at period end for these agreements totaled 55,290,068 (F018: $9,229,057)
2nd may inciude amounts related to unsettied agreements.
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The Master Fund's main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 10% of the fair
value of favarable contracts cutstanding are with a single issuer, with the exception of Federal National Martgage Asseciation, which were valued
at5320,524,643 or 40.61% and Government National Mortgage Association, wheare were valued 3t 586,952 874 or 11.02% of fair value at the and
of the reporting period Apsil 30, 2018 (2018: Federal National Martgage Association, which were valued at $174,075,249 or 25.56% of fair value and
Government Mational Mortgage Association, which were valued at $94, 719,600 or 13,91% of fair value),

The funds are exposed to credit risk associated with the Custodian who holds a portion of the funds’ financial assets and U.S, cash balances. The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary operations for the Master Fund's investment transactions. The Custodian alse provides some of the
short-term lending facilities to the Master Fund. The funds were also exposed to Custodian risk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custodian
has failed to treat correctly in accondance with procedures agreed to by the funds.

The maximum expasure to credit risk as of the reporting date can be anatyzed as follows 2t the end of each reporting period:

- ) | April 20

Eﬂl‘l‘lﬂﬂ.?‘_fpl o B 2019 2018

| Financial assats and labilities atfair value through profit orloss comprised of:

| Fixedincome investments SEOE 204 307 L630,655 542
| Repurchase ogreements I aow 9211000
| Dervaiveassers — nomEsl a8
i___f._ar_ihwushbqumhnu . L N B26,005
| Sales of Ewestments awaiting setliement | 156,206,166 55,109.773
I Subsuipﬂumufunima;wm:ii'[gseﬂ_lgﬂjelu - 1,678,258
| Interest and other receivables N R 4,579,519 5775963
: Heodvahlelmvarlaﬂm_{ga;inu;lq-t_n}_r%__nggm_cts _!S,EED [ 11,855

* Dervative assets are comprised of farward contracts, OTC swap contracts, forward premium swap oplion contracts, purchased eptions, purchased swap
options, writien aptions, and writien Swap options, The masirmum credit risk on written options and wiitten swap options is evaluated on a security basis,
based on the value of premiums paid on each security. The maximum credit risk on certain derivative assels s mitigated a3 a result of the Master Fund’s
erforceable master netting arrangement (Notes 8 and 12,

The Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and loss given default.
Management considers both historical analysis and forwasd looking information in determining any expected credit |oss. At April 30, 2019 and
April 30, 2018, all ather receivables, amounts due from brokers, cash and short-term deposits are held with counterparties with a credit rating of
AAJA3 or higher and are due to be settled within 1 week. Management considers the probability of default to be close to 2ero as the counterpar-
ties hawve a strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term, As 2 result, no loss allowance has been recognised based en
12-maonth expected credit losses as any such impairment would be whally insignificant to the Master Fund.

State Street Bank and Trust Company had a credit rating issued by Moady's at year end of Aa3 (2018: A23). Deutsche Bank AG had a credit rating
issued by Moody's at year end of A3 (2018: BaaZ).

Senior loans are purchased or sold on @ when-issued or delayed delivery Basis and may be settled a month or more after the trade date, which
froorm time to time can delay the actual imvestment of available cash balances; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities.
Senior loans can be acquired through an agent, by assignment from another holder of the [oan, or a5 a participation interest in anather holder's
portion of the loan, When the Master Fund imsests in a loan of participation, the funds are subject to the risk that an intermediate participant
between the Master Fund and the borrower will fail to meet its obligations to the Master Fund, in addition to the risk that the borrower under the
Inan may default on its obligations.

Pursuant to the funds’ investment policy, the Manager is to manitor on an ongaing basis the funds’ credit position.

(f} Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may ernployvarious imestment technigues and instruments for imvestment purpases orfar efficient portfolio management of
their assets for hedging against market movements, currency exchange, interest rate risks or otheneise, Any such instruments ane used under
the conditions and within the limits laid down by the Manager, The Master Fund utilized forwards, futures, options and swap contracts during the
reparting period, and any resulting gains or losses were reparted in the Staterments of comprehensive income (loss).

{g) Fair valuation estimation

The earrying value less impairment provision of other receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial lizbiithes for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Master Fund for similar financial instrurnents.
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Amendment i IFRS T “Finongial Instruments: Disclosure” requines the Master Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fairvatue hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements,

Queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lizbilithes (Lewed 1)

=  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices) (Level 2)

»  Inputsfor the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Thie leved in the fairvalue hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined an the basis of the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For this purpose, the significance of aninput ks assessed against the fair
value measurement in its entirety. If a fair value measurement uses cbservable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 maasurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fairvalue measurement in its entirety

requires judgrent, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes “observable® requires significant judgment by the funds. The funds consider obsenvable data to be that
market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and pravided by independent
sources that are actively imsolved in the relevant market.

Imiestments whosavalues are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1, include active listed equi-
ties, exchange traded derivatives, U.5. povernment treasury bills and certain non-U.5. sovereign obligations, The Master Fund does not 2djust the
quoted price for these instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not consedened to be active but are valued besed on guoted market prices, dealer quotations
or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include investment-grade carparate bonds and
certain non-LLS. sowvereign obligations, isted equities and OTC derivatives. As Leved 2 investrments include positions that are not traded in active
markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect illiquidity and/far non-transferability, which are generally
based on available market information.

For financial instruments far which there is no active market, the Master Fund may use internally developed models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry. Inputs for assets and [iabilities that are not based on
observable market data are classified within Level 3.
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The fallowing table analyzes the fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

145/270

reparting period April 30, 2005,
FairValue — Financial assats Levell Level2 Leval 3 Total
Investment in securities: - e | e
Commaon stocks: 1 I
Energy - & | §— $15,154 $15,154
Fixed Income: 4 =i
Asset-packed securities - 2,333,000 = | 2,333,000
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, #lvalue 982000 120,736 —— 2,252735
_Gamvertible bonds and dotes — e i =
_ Copimlgoods = HGIG = 956,158
Communication services — 1.445,151 - 1445191
Consumer cycicnls = 3,016,232 = SumeR
Consumer staples - 1,456,527 - 1456521
Energy - | B65,674 - g5
Financials = 916,163 = 916,163
Healthcare = 3217533 ——= A
Tecdwology == LS = 1364011
Transpartation = - | 204,359 - 204,359
Utilities and power 4 - | 404,041 - 404041
Corparate bonds and notes B i
Basic materials ——— % - 10,440,125 - 10,440,125
Capital goods == - | 4,320,657 _ | 4,520,657
Communication servies - | 12800825 S
Consumer cyclicals = - 15,957,909 - | 15,957,909
Consumer sizples - 4022652 =) 4022652
Energy - T w0 | 217872
Foancials - g™ =] 1278170
Healthcare = 23725 == 8,387,215
Technology - 3,460,822 - 3460,622
Transportation — 416,096 o= a0k
Utilities and power = 3,737,346 - 3731346
Foreign govermment and agency bonds and notes - | 53,564,039 - 53,564,033
Morgage-backed securities |
hgency collateralized morgage obligations - | 91,563,627 = 91,563,621
Commercial mortgage-backed seauities = M2 i 46,344,220
| Residential mongage-backed securities - S0510453 =  5091045F
 Purchased options outstanding = TEM = 257,538
Purchased swap options outstanding | = 13,TEL465 = 13,781,466
_ Seniorloans = e
Basic manprials = 468,589 - 463,589
| Capitalgonds - 457759 - 457,759
| Consumercyclicals = 3252603 = 3,252,683
Consumer staphes = 132016 - 13,015
Energy = L = 597,380
Healthcare o - 147528 R e 1 ks = i
Technology B : = = 300,338
Short:term investments = 51425173 - 31,435,173
| U5 government and agency martgage obligations = 307040458 _— | 300040458
Tatal investment in securities 982,000 | 742,867,573 15,258 743,864,837
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FalrValue — Financial assets cont. Lewvel 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
| Derlvatives: = —a W o | O R— . B
Forward contracts — 52,410,063 — 52,410,063
| Forward premium swapoplion contracts - 354,017 - | 254,007
OTC Inberesd rate Swap contracts - 4415 - 4415
| OrCTotsretumswapcontacts T N : 160538
| OTCCredit defautt contracts - 7170534 TiT0E
Total derivatives - 10,008,067 = 10,008,067
' Tatal Financial assets atfair value thraugh profit or loss - $753,672,904
 Falr Value — Finandialassets _ Level1  Levelz Level3  fotal
Cash equivalents — 547,780,562 — 547,760,562
| Centrally cleared interest 1ale swap eontracts A =] 475,265 e L
Centrally cleared total return swap contracts I - i i - b s
| Futurescontacts ' s | - - 1641
Falr Value — Financial liabilities i Level1 Levelz Level 3 Total
| Derivatives:
| Forward contracts | - §1,295,817 - $1,295,817
| Farwaed premium seap option contracts il i} = a5 = _ BHGL%
| OTC Totad return swap contracts = M1E57 =l 141,857
i OTC Credit default contracts . - l?..ﬂlﬁ.?. | - 13,4?3.43’1'_
Total derivatives = 17,457,047 = 17,457,047
| TBAsale commitments - 196,861,721 - 196,851,721
 Written options outstanding | = i | = | _ i
| Written swap options dutstanding = i = _WATTET | —-1 _ LATATET
| Tatal Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 5225,015,880
Fair Value — Financial liabilities i Level 1 Levelz Levela Total
: Contrally cleared interdsl rale swap cOnLEacts | 5= 512,040,306 §= 512,040,306
[ Cemtrally cleared total return swap contracts - 2,413,595 - 2413.556
Contsallyclesred craditdefantt contracts. = 1483338 JE 1453338
Furescontracts 103,417 e - 103417

All other 2ssets and liablites not measured at fairvalue but for which fairvaiue is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refar 1o the Statements of
finangial position for a breakdown of assets and lizbilities and 1o Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation technigues,

At the start and close of the reporting period, Level 3 investments in securities represented less than 1% of the funds’ net assets and were not

eonsidered a significant portion of the Master Fund’s partiolio.
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The fallowing table analyzes the fairvalue hierarchy of the Master Fund's financial assets and liabilities measured at fairvalue at the end of the

reporting periad April 30, 2008,

' Fairvalue — Financial assets Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
 Investment in securities: |
| Common stocks: | |
Energy | $— §104,328 §— $104,328
Flsed Income: [
Collateral on certain derivative contracts, st value 320,000 1319844 = 1,639,844
Convertible bonds and nates
Basic materials o [ E— . - _96,300 = %630
__ Capial goods . - s - s
Communication services = | 176,11 | 175,119
Consumer cyclicals - 161,283 = TE1,283
Consumerstaples — 308,945 - 308,945
Energy = 280,885 - | 280,885
Financials - 204673 - 204673
Health care - 64,823 = 54,833
Technology - _ = | @ e | =] @
| Tramsportation - 98,071 - 38,071
| Corporate bonds and notes |
| asic materials = 18,571,984 - | 18,971,584
| Caphalgoods - 7,156,434 - 7,756,434
| Comrnisnication services - 16,445,803 - 16,445,800
I Consumer cyclicals = | 23213846 - | 23213846
| Consumerstaples - | 5743286 - | 9,743,285
| Energy = ) 34,508,764 Wy | 34,508,864
| Financials - | 16,743,376 - | 16743376
| Hestihcare : I T - 13135999
| Technology §,471,88) - 6421881
| Transportation - 459851 . sags1
| Unidities and power - 4244403 - 4244403
| Farggn povennmient 3nd apency bonds and nots - 44,546,109 44,945 109
| Morigage-backed securities
i Agency collateralized morigape obligations = 9TEIET - | STE26.T00
| Commercial mortgage-backed securities - £8,230538 = | esansm
‘Residential mongage-backed securiies - e0sZIakS =l 60.527,265
Purchased options outstanding - 1111681 - LG
| Purchased swapoptions outstanding . E umas = 1711239
| Seniorioany
Basicmatefals 00000 0 00— | @ AI36% 2 = 413,839
Capital goods - 1631599 - 1631598
. Consumercychicals =~ S 2490443 = AN An8
- - L — 2 = 5158
Energy - 1613331 — 1,613,331
Vit cae - = HAES, = 122575
Tchoology - s38348 = 1 50038
St i Mt . = D067 == TAAGD6T
U.S, government and agency mortgage obligations — | 158,656,091 =l | 158,656 081
Totalinvestmentinsecurities 320000 | 682409292 w0 | em2m293m
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| FairValue —Financialassets cont. Lavel 1 Lavel2 Level3 | Total

| Derivatives: B 1 1 i

| Fmrardm:a_&s o b= - _53-1'12_452 _5—_| 53.;1;.49:2

| Forward premium swap option contracts = 473,351 2 | 4,073,351

| OmCTotsfebm Shap coabocty =5 = 2808 | =) 3u2868
OfcCrediaefateonacts = | ssam - | s
| Total derivatives - | 13,631,458 = 13,631,458

 Total Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss | $696,360,850

| FairValue — Financial assets Levell | Level2 Level 3 Total

| Centrally cheared interest rate swap contracts = | 512,023,960 = | 512,023,960

| Centrally clesred total retum swapcontracts = 1303 2 1,303,255

| Futurescantracts Wiy | = . £ 162,213

| Falrvalue—Financisllishilities B (... I ... ez | ol
| : ! s

| Fowadcomacts &= | wmsee = | susser
| Forward premium swag option contracts - 3,673,993 - 3873593

| T Interest rate swap contracts - 3588 == | 3568

| 6TE Total return swap contracts - 411,961 - | 411,361
OTC Cradit default contracts - I 0,873,529 - | 9,873,529

| Total derivatives . = 17,918,333 = | 17,818,333

| TBA salecommitments = | 2,654,301 == 52,564,301

| Written options outstanding — | 1,330,362 - | 1,330,362
Iﬁu&ms}mpapummuundimg ' - | 13080819 =] 13.080819

| Total Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or lass o | $124,993815

Fair Value — Financial liabilities Levell | Level2 Levelz | Total

.Ei!n!raﬂyrdaamdlnberestrmswapmntmcu — S&.‘FE?.TFS;_ B ¢~ | 48,752,751

| Centrally cleared total retum swap coniracts - I,SNEE_ =) 1:5?‘6_55?._

I Centrally cleared credit default contracts = -o| 1136377 - .; _-"1.133,97?

| Futurescontracts - - 209,852 - =] 209,892

Alf other assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assets and liabilities and to Hotes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techniques,

At the start and close of the reporting period, Level 3 investments in securities representad less tham 19 of the funds’ net assets and were not
considered a significant portion of the Master Fund's portfalia.
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Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss:

April3n
| 2019 2018
| Financial assets: |
Cash equivatents 547,780,562 = |
Debt securities | 676,122,760 607,540,153 |
Equitysecurities ) o | 15,154 104,328 |
Repurchase agreements | FLTT4000 38,211,000
U treasarybils and shoetterm forsign governvment securities Q010 alo includes conmircislpaper] WESLIT BA2IAO6T |
| Dervatives R 4057071 13631458 |
!  Collatacalion certaln derhative contracts - .:,.252.,1'35 1,535.5#.
| Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including cash equivalents] $B01,653,466 696,360,850
April 30
. B o . 2018 2018
rEthﬁnu:hanminfairlemﬁnmlmﬂhirm:hmahpﬂﬁmmm
Realized . SaeATIN) 51264022
onegsiretng - T T
| Total gains/[losses] 5[20,658,283) ] 59,460,349

{h) Capital risk management

The capital of the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, The amount of net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis, as the funds are subject to daily subscriptions and redermnptions at the
discretion of unitholders, The funds’ objective when managing capital is to sefeguard the funds’ ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for unithalders and maintain a capital base to support the development of the investment activities of the Master Fund. The
Manager, at its discretion, may scale down a significant redemption that it deemns would materially prejudice the management of the fundsin
accordance with itsinvestmient abjectives.

Im order bo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the funds’ policies are to perform the following:

= Monitar the leved of daily subscriptions and redemptions relative to the assets it expects to be able to liguidate within a day and adjust the
amount of distributions (if any) the funds pay to redeemable unitholders.

Redeem and issue new units in accordance with the constitutional documents of the funds, which include the ability to restrict redemplions
and require cartain minimum holdings and subscriptions,

The Manager manitars capital an the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable unitholders.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 34
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5. FEES AND EXPEMNSES

(a} Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiliate of the funds, may be entitled to an annual fee of up to 2.00% for Class S Units and 0.60% for Class | Units payable aut
of the assets of the Master Fund, For the fiscal year, at the discretion of the Manager, the management fee was not assessed to Class 5 Units
2ssociated with the Master Fund. The Manager will recelve an annual fee of up to 160% for Class J Units and 1.00% for Class M Units, the Units
associated with the Feeder Fund, per annum on the average monthly net assets of each Class of the Feeder Fund.

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam International Distributors, Led. (the Distributor), an affiliate of the funds, a fee as agreed between the Manager and
the Distributor out of the Manager’s fee, The Distributor may share its fees with other parties such as other sub-distributers in such manner and to
such extent as it seesfit from time to time.

Itis currently expected that the total expense ratio (excluding amartized erganizational expense] for Class J Units will not exceed 1.809% and
Class M Units will not excead 1.20% per annurm of the averaga monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund. The Manager reserves the right to
modify this total expense ratio at any time, At the end of the reporting period, the Manager paid the Distributor 35,013,000 (2018: 53,761,154),

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the Master Fund Trustee) is entitled w be paid out of
the assats of the Master Fund a fee of up to 522,500 per annum subject to an annual review where the fee may be increased for varicus reasons
such as inflation without Unitholder consent 25 long 25 the fees are still considered to be at normal commercial rates.

Such fees will accrue daily and be paid quarterly in arrears. The Master Fund Trustee shall be reimbarsed for all reasonabile aut-of-packet
expenses incurred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Fund out of the Master Fund's assets,

Pursuant to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, the Feeder Fund Trustee is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.02%
per annum an the average daily Met Asset Value of the Feeder Fund up to 560,000 per annum and subject to 2 513,000 minimum per year, Such
fees will accrue daily and be paid quarterly in arrears. The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimbursed for all reasonable sut-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Feeder Fund Trustee in relation to the Feeder Fund out of the Feeder Fund's assets.

{b} Transactions with Mon- Related parties

Custodian fees

The Manager shall pay to State Street Bank and Trust Company (the Custodian), out of the assets of the Master Fund, a fee of up to 0.10% per
annum on the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daily and paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall also pay to
the Custodian, out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.10% per annum on the average manthly Met Asset Value of the Feeder Fund
accrued daily and paid manthly In arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasanable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Custodian out of the
funds’ assets.

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian has appointed State Street Cayman Trust Compary, Ltd, (State Street] (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in relation to the funds, For administrative services performed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
gt of the assets of the Master Fund a fee up to $67,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. Additional
menthly per quote pricing fees will apply. This fee will 2ccrue dally and be paid monthly in arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses payable o the Sub-Accounting Agent gut of the funds’ assets, The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the
25sets of the Feeder Fund an administrative fee of approximately 55,000 per anaurn plus monthly per queote pricing fees, This fee is included with
the Custody fees on the Statements of comprehensive income (lgss), 2nd will accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears, The Manager shall
discharge reasonable cut-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the funds' assets,

The funds may enter into expense offset arrengements with State Street whereby State Street’s faes are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances. For the years ended Apeil 30, 2018 and April 30, 2018, the funds' expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset arrangements.

Putnam Diversified Ineame Trust Funds {Cayman) 2
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Transfer Agent fees

The Managsr shall pay Citibank Eurepe ple (the Transfer sgent), out of the assets of the funds, a fee based on the volume of transfer agent activity,
subject to a 5300,000 minimum per annum on the Master Fund and a 575,000 minimurn per annum on the Feeder Fund, accrued daily and paid
maonthly in arrears, The Manager shall discharge reasanable sut-of-pocket expenses payable to the Transfer Agent out of each fund's assets,

Other Expenses

In addition, each respective fund bears all ather expenses incidental ta its operations and business, including, amongst others all compliance
costs and the fees of its auditors and legal advisers; custody charges; interest and commitrnent fees on loans and debt balances; any income,
withholding or other tawes: cost of communication with Unithaolders and praspective investors.

Each fund may be required to pay subscription and redemption charges in connaction with investrents in other investment companies. Each
fund may b reguired to pay brokerage commissions in relatian to portfolio transactions,

10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

During the reparting period, the Manager reimbursed the Master Fund 53,817 fer certaln trades in connection with a settiemant by 2n affiliate
with the Securities and Exchange Cormmission, The effect of the reimbursement by the Manager of such amount had na material impact on
total returmn.

The Managervaluntasily reimbursed the Master Fund 5270,805 for an operational error refating 1o an unimended excess cash balance which
occurmed during the period May 1, 2017 through April 30, 2018.
11. MARKET CONDITIONS

in the normal course of business, the Master Fund trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions where risk of potential loss
exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or failuse of the contracting party 1o the transaction to perform (credit risk). The Master Fund may
be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution ar other entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or open transactions will default
as discussed in previous nobes,
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12, OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AND DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following tables summarize any derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at the end of the reporting
periods that are subject to an enforceable master netting agreement or similar agreement. For securities lending transactions or borrowing
transactions associated with securities sold shart, if amy, see Note 3. For financial reporting purposes, the Master Fund does not offsat financial
assetsand I‘nanc;al.ﬁa.huhbesthatam subject 1o the master nemngagmemenrsm the Statements l:»fﬁnanm! position,

| § e :- s
3 2 §-g HESSIRE (i
e E | % s
g e | 'E Egg I § ' §§

April30,2019 a:z 3 ) R I O
OTC Interest rate swap contracts™ ' = — | §- ' 5— Ty
Centrally cleared interest ra1e swagp contracts’ | - = 768,316 | = ~ |
OTC Total retum swap contracts™ 4377 | 34721 - 4783 -|

| I:em;lw-:lamomu!re‘tum swap contracts =l - 168,241 =:] =]
| OTC Credit default contracts - prmn:nmm"'_____:_ - | - =] - =]
"D_fE'c-TdT:T:'eEJ{:E-Em:s - protection purchased™ - | - -1 =1 x|
' Centrally cleared credit default contracts? =] - - - -

| Futures contractsh = - == - -
Forwand currency contracts® ] 110432 2T = 8611 =
Forward premium swap option contracts® =2 106,031 - . ____E__ =
Purchased swap options™™ 1,765,816 — - 134731 =
Purchased options™ 28,539 - = = =

| Repurchase agreements ™ I . =h (—— St 1 e =
TotalAssets | S140,164 S36B6SS  SUI660T $408125 562,037
O‘!’-Eirlieneﬂ.ra!eswapm.ads—“ - . ey I —_ —_ - - . -
| Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts? i - - 1,028,888 | - =]
OTC Total return swap contracts™ - B - | 32929 - | - - |
__l_Efﬂ_tmec‘leafedmulreiurnmm:nFtr_un’ | =1 - T | - — =
OTCEE;TEE_{;IHMHMH pm:ectrunsdd x 251,705 = == = 1.481,356 |
O‘I"Ctredn.de{aul.tmntracts protection purchased™ - - s - —
| Centratly cleared cregit default contracts? =1 =] ‘uam| =] -
I | Futures contracis® o . = = = - =]
| Forward currency contracts' T 1mEm 131,565 - | 53,522 - |
: Forward prmmmgmuptlnnmww . 25&.05 [ 3212!' il | 414,863 ool
Written swap options® - h ' -] - | 155306 =
| Wiritten options® x =4 =} | =
| Total Liabilities B N $6T1,357  S246723  S1,284,548  $665,301 51,861,356
| Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets sTarar  S12186  S(3angal)  S(asTaTe)  $1899,319)
Total financial instruments received {pledged)™t sTarTer $— s sknee se9s19)
Totalcash collateral received (pledged)™ 5 §121,962 5— = §
Netamount - — - 537941  S(24760) s
Controlied financiol instruments received fincluding TBAcommitments)®  $784127 | §— 5= 5= §m
 Contralled cash collateral received fincluding TBA commitments)* $— | $130000 5 $- 5~
 Uncontrolied coloterol recefved = 5 §— 5— 5~
Colloterai (pledged) fincluding TBA commitments/™ - 5— 5— Si232.416) 51312293)

*Excludes premiurms, if any. Included in Financial assats and/or F'nancla! Eahllluesatfalrvamemrnugh prefiter loss on the S:atemenuqfﬁn.anmﬂ position.
“Incleded in Financial assets andfor Financial liabilities at fairvalue threugh prefit or loss on the Statements of financial position. .
Tadditional collateral may be required from certain brokers based on individial agreements.
*Covered by master netting agreement (Note ).
=y over-collateralization of total financial and derhvative net assets i nat shown, Collateral may incliede amounts related 1o unsettied agreemaents.
“incledes current day's variation margin only 25 reported on the Statements of finandial pesition, which is not collaterafized, Collateral pledged forinitial margin
on fstures contracts and centrally cleared swap contracts, which is not included in the table above, amounted to 5217085 and 56,242,052, respectively.
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§(555,761) S(LST0)  $(1,222,294)  S25TI8  S4TEE60 | $(2,162,887) $39,690 | 51,774,000
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| €entrally cleared credit default cantraces® - | . — - -
F‘Lrturesmn'lracls' ___ - - - - =
| Forward currencycontracts® 473,258 HIEE - 374804 -
| Farward prﬂmummop:mnhmr'ﬂu' 1253154 333,362 o 1701 =
Wu:mmapcﬂm@_‘ f 1.329.310 i 258,758 - 1,586,978 -
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 Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets $(34,32T)  $(456,640) 508772 $(s23,485) $(57,569)
 Total financial instruments received (pledged)™t H34,337)  5[856,540) 5= 5{823,436] 5—
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" Controliedfi m;ﬂumumrﬂmmwmw' $— 5 — — §—
 Controlled cash colloteral received fincluding TBA commitments)® §— 5— 5 = §—
Uncontrofied coflateral recened &— | &— 5— | §— S
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*Excludes premiums, If any. includad in Financial assets and/for Financial Habilites atfmrvllunhrou.g.h profiver loss on the Statements of financial position,
“Included in Financial assets andfor Financis] labilities at fair value through profit or loss on the Statements of financial position.

tagditonal collateral may be required from certain brokess based on individual agreements,

*Covered by master netting agreement (Note B

=Amy over-collateralization of teral financial and dervative net assets is not shown. Collateral may inclede amounts related to unseitled agreements.
¥includes current day's variation margin only as reparted on the Staternents of fingacesl pasition, which is not coflateralized. Collateral plodged for mitial margin
on futures contracts and centrally cleared swap contracts, which is not included in the table above, amounted to 524,577 and 516,563,013, respectively,
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13. APPROVAL OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

These fingncial statements were approvied by the Trustees on July 29, 2019,

14, EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There were na significant post-Statements of financial pesition events through July 29, 2019,
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2019
473,801 50,441
1,150 122
472,651 50,318
11,894,560
58,305,130
6.65 708
6.75 719
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2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

12

12

12

12

12

12

100

94,263,980

92,450,090

96,767,628

65,195,828

22,058,670

14,992,655

10,707,014
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1937
2019 1,740 18.5
10 175
2019

2019

472,801,515
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2017 12 31

106.46

30

23

25

193
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2017 12 31
2018 12 31
58,683,295 6,247,424 49,655,238 5,286,297
1,385,328 147,482 12,996,889 1,383,649
)/

(18,314) (1,950) 1,634,367 173,995
60,050,309 6,392,956 64,286,494 6,843,940
15,921,723 1,695,027 15,632,694 1,664,257

4,266,249 454,185 3,695,706 393,445
4,182,074 445,224 22,974 2,446
2,818,062 300,011 2,497,070 265,838
25,380,067 2,701,962 20,974,242 2,232,918
31,953,077 3,401,725 33,024,868 3,515,827
84,521,252 8,998,132 75,847,554 8,074,731
(24,470,943) (2,605,177) (11,561,060) (1,230,790)
28,842,124 3,070,533 55,574,248 5,916,434
(53,313,067) (5,675,709) (67,135,308) (7.,147,225)
(3,393,595) (361,282) (4,093,583) (435,803)
(446) 7

(3,393,595) (361,282) (4,094,029) (435,850)
(56,706,662) (6,036,991) (71,229,337) (7,583,075)
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2017 12 31
2018 12 31
2,664,967 283,712 1,911,615 203,511
10,837,761 1,153,788
13,481,003 1,435,188 10,835,427 1,153,540
1,601,072 180,032
1,832 195
454,834 48,422 607,477 64,672
18,291,876 1,947,353 24,194,112 2,575,705
1,136,253 120,965 808,026 86,022
1,908,612 203,191 1,163,916 123,910
248,269 26,431 163,500 17,406
6,087 648
3,299,221 351,235 2,135,442 227,339
(15,728,387) (1,674,444) 75,317,769 8,018,330
416,237,588 44,312,654 277,551,117 29,548,092
(377,861,148)  (40,227,098)  (326,548,413)  (34,764,344)
(7,655,398) (814,994) (4,261,803) (453,712)
14,992,655 1,596,118 22,058,670 2,348,366
18,291,876 1,947,353 24,194,112 2,575,705
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(¢ )/
2018 12 31
75,317,769 8,018,330 277,551,117 29,548,092 (326,548,413) (34,764,344)  (4,261,803) (453,712) 22,058,670 2,348,366
IFRS 15
(2,000,332) (212,955) 2,000,332 212,955
73,317,437 7,805,374 277,551,117 29,548,092 (324,548,081) (34,551,389)  (4,261,803) (453,712) 22,058,670 2,348,366
2,971,270 316,321 (2,971,270) (316,321)
(141,657,741) (15,080,883) 141,657,741 15,080,883
49,640,647 5,284,743 49,640,647 5,284,743
(3,393,595) (361,282) (3,393,595) (361,282)
(53,313,067) (5,675,709) (53,313,067)  (5,675,709)
12 31 (15,728,387) (1,674,444) 416,237,588 44,312,654 (377,861,148) (40,227,098)  (7,655,398) (814,994) 14,992,655 1,596,118
2017 12 31
94,434,746 10,053,523 243,631,126 25,936,970 (263,089, 385) (28,008,496)  (9,780,659)  (1,041,249) 65,195,828 6,940,748
9,371,693 997,710 (65,146,888) (6,935,538) 3,676,280 391,377 9,612,885 1,023,388 (42,486,030)  (4,523,063)
103,806,439 11,051,233 178,484,238 19,001,432 (259,413,105) (27,617,119) (167,774) (17,861) 22,709,798 2,417,685
156,620 16,674 156,620 16,674
13,192,371 1,404,460 (13,192,371) (1,404, 460)
(112,102, 630) (11,934, 446) 112,102,630 11,934,446
70,421,589 7,497,082 70,421,589 7,497,082
(4,094,029) (435,850) (4,094,029) (435,850)
(67,135,308) (7,147,225) (67,135,308)  (7,147,225)
12 31 75,317,769 8,018,330 277,551,117 29,548,092 (326,548, 413) (34,764,344)  (4,261,803) (453,712) 22,058,670 2,348,366
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2017 12 31
2018 12 31

(24,470,943) (2.605,177) (11,561,060) (1,230,790)
(28,842,124) (3,070,533) (55,574,248) (5,916,434)
28,600,084 3,044,765 55,429,657 5,901,041
1,832 195 2,751 293
156,620 16,674
(269,009) (28,639) (1,529,686) (162,850)
(2,645,576) (281,648) 3,035,305 323,139

(1,691,072) (180,032)
148,787 15,840 1,439,164 153,213
328,227 34,943 (831,708) (88,544)
795,686 84,709 (1,279,016) (136,164)

6,087 648
(31,739,950) (3,379,035) (59,403, 238) (6,324,069)
(59,777,971) (6,363,963) (70,115, 459) (7,464,492)
(1,000,000) (106,460) (2,106,138) (224,219)
12,106,770 1,288,887 2,065,510 219,894
11,106,770 1,182,427 (40,628) (4,325)
(204,008,181)  (21,718,711)  (169,003,002) (17,992,060)
253,648,828 27,003,454 239,424,591 25,489,142
49,640,647 5,284,743 70,421,589 7,497,082
(216,094) (23,005) 126,710 13,490
753,352 80,202 392,212 41,755
1,911,615 203,511 1,519,403 161,756
2,664,967 283,712 1,911,615 203,511
160,856 17,125 44,771 4,766
399 42 716 76
141,657,741 15,080,883 112,102,630 11,934,446
2,971,270 316,321 13,192,371 1,404,460
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PAC
PAH
2018
PUSH PAH
02110 100
AUM
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
14,992,655 22,058,670
2018 PAH PAH
PAH
2017 2017

2017 12 31 2017

2017
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93,865,524 (66,317,515) 27,548,009
(28,669, 696) 23,831,485 (4,838,211)
65,195,828 (42,486,030) 22,709,798
2017 12 31
84,417,784 (20,131,290) 64,286,494
(89,318,419) 13,470,865  (75,847,554)
(57,292,387) 1,718,139  (55,574,248)
(62,193,022) (4,942,286)  (67,135,308)
(618,746) (3,475,283)  (4,094,029)
(62,811,768) (8,417,569)  (71,229,337)
69,307,401 (45,113,289) 24,194,112
(9,356,444) 7,221,002 (2,135,442)
59,950,957 (37,892,287) 22,058,670
1ASB
IFRS
2018
IFRS 15
2018 12 31 IFRS 15
IFRS 15
2018 12 31

2018 12 31
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IFRS 15 IFRS 15
54,501,221 4,182,074 58,683,295
55,868,235 4,182,074 60,050,309
4,182,074 4,182,074
80,339,178 4,182,074 84,521,252
2018 IFRS 15
IFRS 15 2018
2018
2017 12 31 IFRS 15 2018
75,317,769 (2,000, 332) 73,317,437
(326,548,413) 2,000,332 (324,548,081)
22,058,670 22,058,670
2018 IAS 39 IFRS
FVTPL
FVTOCI
IFRS AFS
IAS 39
2018

IAS 39 IFRS
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2018 IFRS IAS 39
IFRS
2017 12 31 2018
IAS 39 IFRS
1,911,615 (1,911,615)
1,911,615 1,911,615
10,835,427 (10,835,427)
10,835,427 10,835,427
188,335 188,335
188,335 (188, 335)
12,935,377 12,935,377
1,163,916 (1,163,916)
1,163,916 1,163,916
808,026 (808,026)
808,026 808,026
1,971,942 1,971,942
IFRS 2018 12 31
2018
2018 12 31

2018
12 31 36
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IFRS

10
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2017 12 31
2018 12 31

FVTPL

FVTPL
FVTPL

two-sided markets
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FVTPL

FVTPL FVTOCI
2009 12 CDo

CDo
CDo 2017
2017 12 31 12,078,992
12,057,860 21,132
2018

2017 12 31 1,832 2,751
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2018 6,876,911 2017 5,685,472
2017 12 31 3,062,696

2018 2017 12 31 25,380,067
20,974,242
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EIP

301.7701-3

2018 31

2018
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017 12 31
2018
2018
2017 12 31 modified separate return
method
2018
12 31 2017 12 31
2017
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AOCL

AOCL

AOCL

10
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IFRS 15 2018 IFRS 15
2,000,332
IFRS 2018 IFRS
IFRS IAS 39
2014 2018 IFRS
2016 1AS
28
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IFRS 2018 IFRS

IFRIC 22 2018
IFRIC 22

IFRS
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IFRS 16 2016 1ASB IFRS 16
IFRS 16
2019
481,000
469,000
2015 2017 12 1ASB IFRS
2017
2015 2017
IFRS IFRS 11
IAS 12 IAS 23
2019
2017 12
31

10,837,761 2018 12 31 PAH
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
AUM 21,674,296,734
21,043,415,206
AUM
2018 12 31
2018
2017 12 31
2018 12 31
15,172,075 15,172,075
15,172,075 15,172,075
3,044,865 3,044,865
3,044,865 3,044,865
2017 12 31
10,837,761 10,837,761
10,837,761 10,837,761
10,835,427 10,835,427
21,673,188 21,673,188
1,971,942 1,971,942

1,971,942 1,971,942
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2018 2017 12 31

2018 2017 12 31

2018 12 31
FVTPL (17,915) (17,915)
(399) (399)
(17,915) (399) (18,314)
2017 12 31
FVTPL 1,624,251 1,624,251
10,116 10,116

1,624,251 10,116 1,634,367
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2018 12 31
92,610 115,272 385,199 593,081
(92,610) (113, 440) (385,199) (591,249)

1,832 1,832

(92,610) (92,610)
(1,832) (1,832)

92,610 92,610
115,272 385,199 500,471

(115,272) (385,199) (500,471)

2017 12 31

92,610 115,272 385,199 593,081
(92,610) (110, 689) (385,199) (588, 498)
4,583 4,583

(2,751) (2,751)

92,610 115,272 385,199 593,081
(92,610) (113, 440) (385,199) (591,249)

1,832 1,832

185/270



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2018

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
453,306 402,514
1,528 204,963
454,834 607,477
2018

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
248,269 163,500
248,269 163,500
163,500 59,525
242,040 144,591
(160, 856) (44,771)
3,585 4,155
248,269 163,500

2017 12 31
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
242,040 144,591
242,040 144,591

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
(3,141,297) (7,035,118)
1,249,706 62,464,775

30,491,675

28,600,084 55,429,657
28,842,124 55,574,248

2018 12 31 2017 12 31
3,529,845 2,252,794
(156,620)

(2,000,332)
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31

(5,138,898) 21.00 (4,046,371) 35.00

1,728,313 -7.06 (244,574) 2.12
12,341 -0.05 36,701 -0.32
(1,229,457) 5.02 (2,668,446) 23.08
2,982,276 -12.19 0.00
0.00 97,154 -0.84
0.00 62,781,173 -543.04
30,491,675 -124.60 0.00
(4,126) 0.02 (381,389) 3.30
28,842,124 -117.86 55,574,248 -480.70
2018 2017 12 31
2018
2017 12 31 2018 12 31
2007 12 31
2017 12 22 the Tax Reconciliation Act
2018
35 21
2017 12 31 35 21
62,781,173

30,491,675
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2010 31 ULC PIC ULC
6,740,991 PIC
ULC
2018 2017 12 31 15,728,387 75,317,769
2018 2017 12 31
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2017
2018 12 31
12 31
PUSH (2,196,914) 79,783,679
PAH (9,889,692)
(3,669,788) 9,025,194
443,622 1,859,552
543,502 544,397
PRM 687,105 433,004
139,108 (52,591)
PFTC
(1,833,679) (1,255,471)
(325,557) (1,373,795)
PIC ULC (4,736,072) (4,468,503)
PIM
5,109,978 (9,177,697)

(15,728,387) 75,317,769
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2018 2017 12 31 AUM
2017 12 31
2018 12 31
5,543,775 5,603,308
AUM 2,544,463,792 2,580,348,102
2018 2017 12 31 1,400,984
763,554
2017 12 31 13,936,177
2018 12 31
2018 2017 12 31
280,560 337,480
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2018
2017 12 31 25,380,067 20,974,242
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
10 14,736,166 12,079,716
4,662,119 4,419,336
1,077,827 482,435
AUM
1,792,348 1,174,725
AUM
3,111,607 2,818,030
25,380,067 20,974,242
2018 12 31
2,971,270
141,657,741
2017 12 31
13,192,371 112,102,630
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401
2018 2017
12 31 334,603 329,489
PUSH
2018 2017 12 31 1,699,433
1,464,262
EIP
EIP
EIP
IFRS EIP
EIP
EIP
2018 2017 12 31
744,829 856,229
2018 2017 12 31
346,261 506,070
2018 12 31
3,321,687

4.03
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
209,300 18.41 193,000 19.87
63,500 17.13 53,500 14.89
(33,200) 21.60 (37,200) 20.91
(13,000) 16.28
12 31
226,600 17.71 209,300 18.41
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
337,031 331,025
379,108 643,511
2,376,711 2,270,061

3,092,850 3,244,597
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2018 2017 12 31 31,953,007
33,024,868
2018 12 31 2017 12 31
PUSH 14,648,105 13,864,426
PIM 21,552,193 22,535,867
PRM PFTC (7,887,959) (7,110,176)
PRM 1,528,552 1,669,865
PRM 2,112,186 2,064,886
31,953,077 33,024,868
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2018 12 31 2017 12 31
994,733 961,123
271,260 280,766
404,845 381,438
388,305 442,687
280,560 337,480

1,832 2,751
476,527 90,825
2,818,062 2,497,070
2018 12 31
(4,261,803) (4,261,803)
136,250 136,250
(3,529,845) (3,529,845)

(7,655,398) (7,655,398)
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2017 12 31
(10,140,902) 360,243 (9,780,659)
9,974,007 (361,122) 9,612,885
(166,895) (879) (167,774)
(1,905,755) (1,905,755)
(2,187,828) (446)  (2,188,274)
(4,260,478) (1,325)  (4,261,803)
10
2018 12 31
2024
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
493,410 246,705 246,705
2017 12 31
2023
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
755,145 251,715 251,715 251,715
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2018 2017 12 31
271,260 280,766
CDO
2014 28
2015 15
2018 21

2018 11

11
ERISA
1,000,000 2018 2017 12 31

12
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2018 12 31

PIM

2018

500,000,000

10

611,000

402,000

PAC
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2017 12 31

2018 2017 12

2018 2017 12 31



13

2019

2017 12 31

2018 12 31

PFTC

2019

PIM

PFTC

PAC

PIM
PAC
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10 2018

2,326,000 1,287,000
2019 24

PAC

PFTC
PAC
PAC  PIM
PAC AUM PIM
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For the Y cars Ended Decenther 31,

IR 07
In L/SE (Mote 1)
REVENUE
Investmiens advisory fees, et $58,683,205 549,655,228
Performance fees 1,385 328 12, g, B9
et imvestment (boss )y income and ofher (foss)incomes (Mote 3 (18,314 1,654,367
Total revenue G40, (50, 309 G4, 286,494
EXPENSES
Compenszation and benefits 15,921,723 15,632,694
Professional and extermal services 4,266,295 3695, THG
Dealer commuissonms 4,182.074 2974
Cther operating expenses (Mole 8) 2818062 2497070
Service foe expense (Mote 7) 25,380,067 20,074,042
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliafes, net (Mote T) 31,953,077 331024, 8658
Tolnd expemms 84,521,252 75,847,554
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (24,470,943) (11,561,060
Income tax expense (Mote &) 28,842,124 55,574,248
NET LOSS (53,31%,067) (67,135,308
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME{LOSS), NET OF INCOME TAX (Note ¥
Ttems thal may be reclassified subsequently o profi or loss
Unrealized Foreign exchunge ks on rrslation of foreign opermtions, net {$3,393,595) {54,093, 583)
Unrealized ke on available-for-sale investment s, net - {446)
Teme that will not be redassi fed Do profit or loss - -
Cther comprehensive loss for the vear, net of [ncome tax (3,383,385, (4,059,034
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS {556, T06,662) {STL.2X33T)

The accompanmying nobes ame an inegral pan of these financial gaements.

(]
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THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
1018 2007
T LI5E (Mode 1)
ASSETS
Cisch el coshy equavidents (Note 2} 32,660,967 F1L.911.615
Investments {Nobe 3) - 10,537 761
Aocrued imvestment advisory fiees receivable 13,481,003 10835427
Caher receivables 1,681,072 -
Capital assets, net (Mobe 4) - 1332
Cher assets (Note 5) 454,83 GOTATT
TOTAL ASBETS S18.201.876 324,194,112
LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY
Luiabalities
Apcrned commpensation and employes benefitz 41,136,253 908,026
Accounts payable and accroed expenses 1508612 1163516
Current tax liabality (Mote 63 248,26% 163,500
Cxher liatvilities 6087 -
Total liabilitbes 53,299,221 §2,135.442
Memler's equily
Aocoumis (receivable from)'payable to Parent and affiliates, net {(Mote T) (515,723,387 £75,317.769
Cortritued surplus 416,237,588 ITTASLLET
Accamulated defici {377,860, 148) (326,548.413)
Aocamulaied ofhier comprehensive loss (Node %) {76355.398) [4,261,803)
Total member's equity 14,992,655 22,088,670
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY 518,201,876 F3L194,102

Thee accompanying nobes ane an integral pan of these financial stabements.
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THE PUTHNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31,
2018 m7
In LSS {MNote 1)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income taxes (524, 470.943) (511,561 ,060)
Income tax expense (25842124 (535,574,248}
Adpstments w reconcile net loss to cash fows ised in operations:
Deferred meome taxes 28,600,084 55,429 657
Depreciation and amortization of capital assels 1,832 2,751
Adjustment to deferred tax assets to Equity Incentive Flan fair value - 156,620
Changes in FYVTPL securities {265,005 (1,529 686}
(Tncrease Viecrease in operating assets;
Accred mwestment advisory fees receivable (2,645,576) 3035305
Other receivables (1,691,072) -
Other assets 148,787 1,439,164
Increase/f{decrease) in operating habilities;
Agcrued compensation and emplovee benefits 328.227 (831,708)
Aecounits payvable and acorued expenses TE5,680 (127901 6)
Olver halnlities a,087 -
Changes in other operating assets and habilities (31.739,950) (50,403,238)

Net cash used n operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(59,777.971)

(70,115.459)

Purchazes of investmeantz {1 000,000 (2.106,138)
Procesds on sales of investments 12,106,770 2065510
Met cash provided bydused in) investing activities 11,106,770 (AOG2R)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Accounts recervable from Parent and aftibates (Note 7) (204,008 181 ) {160, 003, 002)
Accounts payable to Parent and affihates (Note 7) 253.648.828 239,424,391
Net cash provided by financing activities 49 640,647 TO.421 589
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents {216,094) 126,710
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 753,352 22
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1.211.615 1,519,403
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR E2664.967 £1.911,605
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Foreign income tax paid (Mote &) 160,856 244,771

Interest paid 5399 5716
Supplemental Non-Cash Flow Information from Financing Activities:

Contribution-in-kind received from Parent (Mote 7) 5141,657,741 12102630

Dividend-in-kind paid to Parent (Note 7) $2971.270 $13,192,371

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USSE

1. Corporate Information

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “Company™ or “PAC™) 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Puinam
Advisory Holdings I1. LLC (*PAH II”), and is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investmenis,
LLC {the *“Parent™ or “Putnam™), the latter of which is a majority indirectly-owned subsidiary of Great-West
Lifeco Ine. (“Lifeco™). The Company’s ultimate parent company is Power Corporation of Canada. During
2018, the Company underwent a change in its immediate parent company. as its prior parent company,
Putnam U5, Holdings I, LLC (“PUSH 1"} contributed the Company’s shares to PAH IL The Company is
incorporated in the State of Delaware in the United States of America. The registered office and principal
place of business is located at 100 Federal Strect, Boston, Massachusciits, 02110, United States of America.
The LS. dollar (5) is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company’s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to institutional clients. In
connection with providing these services, the Company receives an investment advisory fee, which is based
upon the chients” negotiated fee rate and the average assets under management. Company revenue is largely
dependent on the total value and composition of assets under management (“AUN), which mclude domestic
and international eguity and debt assets (the “Company Funds™), accordingly. fluctuations in financial
markets and in the composition of assets under management affect revenues and results of operations,

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Notes 2, 6, and
7. The accompanying [nancial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the
Company and may not be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations that would have
existed if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

Economic dependency

The financial statements have been appropriately prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to
a going concern, however, the continuing operations of the Company are reliant upon the ongoing support of
the Parent, The Company has an ending Member’s equity of $14,992.655 and 522,058,670 at December 31,
2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

The Parent has committed to funding the operations of the Company for the foreseeable future.
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USSE

Reorganization

On June 1, 2018, the Company distributed all of its subsidiaries to PAH 11, and subsequently reorganized as a
subsidiary of PAH 11 PAH II is a subsidiary of the Parent, and now holds all of the Parent's non-U5,
operating companies, As this was a commeon control transaction, it was recorded using carrving values at the
date of the transaction and has been presented as il the distributed subsidiaries had never been consolidated,
with the effect shown at the beginning of the carliest period presented. January 1, 2017, The impaet to the
January 1. 2017 and December 31, 2017 Member's equity and 2017 Net loss and Other comprehensive loss

for the Company as a result of the reorganization were as follows:

As previously Effect af
January 1, 2017 reporied Reorganization As adjusted
Balance Sheets
Total zssets 03 Bo5 524 ($06317.515) 327548000
Tofal Ealdities (28,009 690} TRESARS (4B38211)
Total member's equity S65,195,528 (542,456,031 $22,709,798
Ax previously Effect of
Asx of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2017 reporied Reorganization A adjusted
Swatements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
Todal reveme SR 417,784 ($20,131,290) 56, 286,494
Todal expenses (BO3I8 419 13,470,865 {75847 554)
Incoime tax expense (57,292 387) 1,718,139 {35,574,248)
Met Joss (62,193.022) (4,942 280) {67,135,308)
Other comprehensive loss, net of mwome tax (618.745) (3AT5283) (4004020}
Compre bensive loss (562,511.768) (53,417,569 ($71,229.33T)
Balance Sheets
Total assets £, 307 401 ($45,1 13289 $24,194.112
Todal kalshties {3356, 4440 7221 002 (2,135,442}
Total member's equily 559,950,957 (837, 892,287) 522,058,670

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“TASE”), The
policies set out below were consistently applied to all the periods presented unless otherwise noted. The
Company will adopt. or has implemented changes in accounting pohicies lor the adoption of new or amended
accounting standards that are relevant to the business as deseribed in Changes in Acconuting Polfcfes and
Future Accounting Polictes within this Note.

On January 1, 2018 the Company adopied IFRS 13, Revemue ftom Contracts with Customers, and all the
related amendments using the modified retrospective method, which could result in a one-time adjustment to
opening accumulated deficit as of January 1, 2018 as if the standard had always been in effect. if applicable,
and without restatement of comparative information. The standard provides a single revenue recognition
standard to align the financial reporting of revenue from contracts with customers and related costs. The
adoption of this standard impacted the presentation of cerlain revenues and expenses in the Company's
financial statements,
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THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USSE

IFES 15 requires that the presentation of investment advisory fees and distribution fees, which were
previously presented net, be presented on a gross basis in order to disclose the expenses separately from the
revenue. There was no impact to Net loss as a result of this presentation change, For the year ended December
31, 2018, the financial results are presented in accordance with the guidance of IFRS 13 and distribution fees
are included in Dealer commissions on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss. The following table
summarizes the impact of adopting IFRS 15 on the Company’s Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
for the year ended December 31, 2018 for each of the line items affected:

Far the Year Ended December 31, 2018
Amounts without
adoption of Impact of
IFRS 15 adopting IFRS 15 As reporied

Revenue

Imvestment advisory fees, net £54.501,221 4,182,074 S5E0R3 295
Total revenue 55008235 A 182,074 60,050,304
Expenses

Dealer commissions $- S4,182.074 £4,182.074
Total expenses 30333178 4182074 84,521,252

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 on January 1. 2018, the Company’s prepaid dealer commissions are
expensed as incurred instead of deferred and amortized. The Company docs not carry prepaid dealer
commissions on its Balance Sheets. However. it has affiliates in Cayman and Dublin who do carry prepaid
dealer commissions, which were written off at January 1, 2018, in accordance with IFRS 15, These affiliates
are foreign disregarded entities for tax purposes and report U5, income tax activity at the Company. The
Company realizes the tax benelit associated with the write-off, the mmpact of which s summarized in the
following table for each of the hne items affected;

As orginally Impact of
reported at adopling IFRS15  As adjusted al
December 31, 2007 ai January 1, 2018 Japwary 1, 2018
Equity
Accourds (recenable from)pavable to Parend and affilates, net 375317760 (52,000,332} $T3317437
Accumbated defici (326,548,413} 20,332 (324 5480815
Total ety 220586 - 2205867k

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company prospectively adopted the guidance of IFRS 9, Financial Tnsiruments
without restatement of comparative information to replace TAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The standard provides changes to financial instruments accounting for the following:

«  classification and measurcment of financial instruments, including introducing a classification of fair
value through other comprehensive income or loss (FVTOCT) for certain financial assets, while
continuing to maintain the amortized cost and fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) classification
categories. [FRS 9 eliminates the previous TAS 39 categories of held-to-maturity, loans and receivables,
other habifities, and available for sale ( AFSY,

= impairment based on an expected loss impairment method, replacing the incurred loss model, and

+  hedge accounting that meorporates the risk management practices of an entity.
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The following table shows the onginal measurement categories under TAS 39 and the new measurement
categorics under IFRS 9 for cach class of the Company’s financial asscts and financial liabilitics as at January
1, 2018 that were impacted by the adoption of this standard. There were no changes to the camrying amounts
of these assets or liabilities as a result of the adoption:

Orriglinal
classification under

IAS 39

MNew classification

under IFRS 9

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accrued imvestment advisory fees recenahble
Other recevables

Financial Liabilities
Accrusd compensation and employee benefits
Agcounts payable and acerued expenses

The following tables recomcile the carrying amounts of financial assets and habilities under TAS 39 o the

Loans and recenables
Loans and recenahles
Loans and recenables

Loans and recentables
Loans and recenables

carrying amounts under [FRS @ on transition to IFRS @ on January 1, 2018

IAS 39 carrying

Amortized cost
Amortined cost
Aamortized cost

Amortized cost
Amortized eost

amount at TFR% 9 carrying
Reclassification amount at
December3l, Famuary 1. 2018
2017 s
Financlal Assets
Amcrtized Cost
Cash ard cash equivalents:
Brough forward Loans and receivables $1.911,615 (51911615 S
Camed forward:  dmortized cosi - 1,911,615 1Lo116l5
Acered myvestment advisory fees recenable:
Broaght forward Loans and receivables S10835427 (S10R35427) 5
Camied forwand, Amertized cost - FB3I5427 10,835,427
Crther receivables:
Brought forward Loars and recenvalles S % S
Camied forward: Amortzed cost - 188335 188,335
Orther assets:
Brought forward Loany and receivables SIER335 {S188.335) %
Camied forward: Amortized cost - - -
Total anrortized cost 5129353577 e 512,935377
Financial Liallities
Accounts payable and acerued expenses:
Broaght forward Loans and receteablos £1. 16396 (%1,163.916) %-
Carmied forward: dmortized cost - 1,163,916 L1634l
Acered compensation and emploves berne fits:

Brought forward Loans and recenvabiles FRO8026 ($808,026) =
Carried forward: Amerfized cost - B0E026 B8.006
Total amortized cost 51,971,942 5 51,971,942
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In accordance with IFRS 9, financial assets were evaluated as of December 31, 2018 where management used
judgment to assess impairment through the expected credit loss model for each class of financial assets. The
Company’s financial assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents and receivables as of 2018, A
majority of the Company’s receivables balance at December 31, 2018 consists of accrued investment advisory
fees owed from third party entities for services performed in accordance with investment management
agreements. The Company assessed the expected loss rate on these receivables over a period of 36 months
before December 31, 2018 and concluded based upon historical data that the risk of expected eredit loss is
insignificant to the Company. The remaining recevables consist of other receivables, which based on the
nature and history of the receivables. the expected credit loss is insignificant to the Company. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of liquid funds held at banks with high credit-ratings. The probability of default for these
counterparties is considered immaterial and management concluded that the expected credit loss is
insignificant to the Company,

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with IFES requires management to make significant
Judgments involving estimales and assumptions that affict the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Although some uncerainty is inherent o these judgments and estimates,
management believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable, Key sources of estimation uncertainty and
areas where significant judgments have been made are listed below and discussed throughowt the notes to the
financial statements including:

= In the determination of the fair value of financial instruments, the Company's management exercises
judgment in the determination of fair value inputs, particularly those items categorized within level 3
of the fair value hierarchy (Mote 3).

+  The Company operates within various tax jurisdictions where management judgments and estimates
are required when interpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations and legislation in the determination
of the Company’s tax provisions and the carrying amounts of its tax assets and habilities (Note 6).

*  Legal and other provisions are recognized resulting from past events which, in the judgment of
management, have resulted in a probable outflow of cconomie resources which would be passed 1o a
third-party to setile the obligation. Management uses judgment 1o evaluate the possible outcomes and
risks in determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet date (Note 10).

»  Management consolidates all entitics and investment vehicles which it determings that the Company
controls. Control is evaluated on the ability of the Company to dircet the relevant activitics of the
subsidiary or entity to derive vanable returns and management uses judgment in determining whether
contro] exists, Judgment 1s exercised in the evaluation of the variable retums and in determining the
extent to which the Company has the ability to exercise its power to generate varable returns (Mote
3.

= The Company uses estimates to determine certain components of share-based amortization expense
including the share price and forfeiture cstimates (Note 7).

10
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The significant accounting policies are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks with original maturities of
three months or less, which are readily convertible into cash. The carrving value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates its fair value.

Investments

Investments are classified as far value through profit or loss (*FVTPL"). fair value through other
comprehensive income (“TFVTOCT), equity method or as non-financial instruments based on management’s
intention or characteristics of the mvestment. The Company classifies all of its investments as ol December
31, 2017 on the Balance Sheets as FVTPL. During the year ended December 310 2018, the Company
contributed its investments to PATIL

FVTPL

The classification of investments depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and 15 determined
at the time of initial recognition. FVTPL investments have readily determinable fair values and are carried at
fair value in Investments in the Balance Sheets. FVTPL investments are generally valued at the last sale or
closing price on the day of valuation or. if no sales took place on such date, at the mean between the closing
bid and ask prices on the exchange where such securitics are principally traded, or the latest available bid and
ask prices for unlisted securities or where current prices are noi available. Changes in fair value are reported
in Met investment (loss) income and other (loss)income in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss meorporates any dividend or interest camed on the financial
assetl.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company’s financial assets and liabilitics recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the
following fair value hierarchy:

Financial assets and liabilitics categorized as Level 1 utilize observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access. This category includes
actively exchange-traded equily securities and publicly-traded mutual funds with quoted market prices,

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 2 utilize observable inputs other than Level 1 unadjusted
quoted market prices. The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from pricing services, The
pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark vields, reported trades, broker/'dealer quotes,
issucr spreads, two-sided markets. benchmark securities, offers and reference data, Level 2 securitics could
include those priced wsing a matrix which are based on credit quality and average life, government and
ageney securilies, restricted stock, some private equities, hedge funds, most investment-grade and high-vield
corporate bonds, certain asset-backed securities, and foreign exchange forward currency contracts,

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 3 utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based
on observable market inputs and include situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or
liability. The prices of the majority of Level 3 securities were obiained from single broker quotes and intermal
pricing models,

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value mav fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement in ifs entirety falls

11
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has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The Company”s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in
its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability,

Investment Impairment

Financial assets not recorded at FVTPL are reviewed at least quarterly. or when an impairment indicator
exists. on an individual asset basis to determine impairment status. The Company considers various factors in
the impairment evaluation process, including, but not himited to, the financial condition of the 1ssuer, specitic
adverse conditions affecting an industry or region, decline in fair value not related 1o interest rates,
bankruptey or defaults and delinguency in payments of interest or principal.

Diebt instruments are deemed to be impaired when there is no longer reasonable assurance of timely collection
of the full amount of the principal and interest due. Equity investments are deemed to be impaired when the
financial condition and near-term prospeets of the issuer, including information about significant changes
with adverse effects that have taken place in the technological, market, cconomic or legal environment in
which the ssuer operates that may indicate that the carrying amount will not be recovered, and a significant or
prolonged decling in fair value of an equity instrument below its cost. The fair value of an investment is not a
defimitive indicator of impairment, as i may be significantly influenced by other factors including the
remaining term to maturity and liquidity of the asset. However, market price must be taken into consideration
when evaluating impaimment. Gains and losses on FVTPL investments are already recorded in income,
Impairments on FVTOCT assels are reversed if there is objective evidence that a permanent recovery has

oceurred.

In Diecember 2009, management of the Parent fully impaired its investment in a collateralized debt obligation
{“CDO, for which the Company was the assel manager, based vpon declining market conditions. Under the
terms of its offering memorandum, the C1O was required to hold an annual avction of its portfolio to provide
liguidity, beginning in 2017, A suceessful bid from this auction resulted in procesds to the Company in the
amount of 312,078,992 for the year ended December 31, 2017, The Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss line item components affected are as follows: 512,057,860 of Performance fees, representing
accumulated previously camed fees and $21,132 of Investment advisory fees, net.

Capital assets, net

Capital assets, net are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation computed on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, which vary from three to seven years, Capital assets are evaluated for
impairment on a quarterly basis, Assets no longer used, and the associated accumulated depreciation, are
removed from the Balance Sheets with a charge recorded in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
for the net carrying value of the assets. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease.
Diepreciation of capital assets for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, is $1,832 and 52,751, respectively.

Other Financial Instruments

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, Other receivables, Accrued compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses are classified as being measured at amortized cost, and
initially recorded on the Balance Sheets at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
elfeetive interest rale method, unless shorl-term. where interest would be insignificant. The carrving value of
Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, Other recervables, Acerued compensation and emplovee
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates its fair value,
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Offsetting and Presentation of Intercompany Receivables and Pavables

Intercompany receivables and payables are offset and the net amount is presented in the Balance Sheets, This
oceurs when the Company and its Parent and affiliates owe cach other a determinable amount. the Company
has the right to set off the amount owed with the amount owed by the affiliates, and the Company intends 1o
set off the amount owed and the right is enforceable by law by a Putnam Master Netting Agreement. It is the
Company’s policy to include Accounts {receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates, net as a component
of Member’s equity on the Balance Sheets. since periodic setflement usually only occurs in the form of a non-
cash accounting transaction.

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory fees. net are based on contractual agreements and a percentage of average or period-end
assets under management, net of cxpense limits and rebates (2018: 56.876.911; 2017: $5,685.472). For the
year ended December 31, 2017, Investment advisory fees. net are also net of distibution fees of 53.062.696.
Investment advisory fees are recognized i the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as camed on a
daily, monthly or quarterly basis, and are paid monthly or quarterly.

Performance fees are recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss when performance
obligations or thresholds have been satisfied and management is assured of their realization.

Net investment (loss)income and other income includes unrealized and realized gains and losses on the
Company’s investments as well as interest income and dividend income. This income is recognized in the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as eamed.

Transfer pricing program

The Company collects revenue and pays a service fee in accordance with a transfer pricing program
established with its foreign affiliates, which is included in Service fee expense on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss (Note 7). Service fee expense for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
$25.380L067 and 520.974.242, respectively.

Dealer Commissions

Dealer commissions include distribution fees incurred for certain share classes of the Funds, which include
costs incurred at the time of the sale as well as recurring commissions based on assets under management.
The distribution fees are presented on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and paid by the
Company when due, pursuant to the contractual agreement.

Share-Based Payments

Share-based pavment awards for restricted Class B shares and options on Class B shares granted to employees
under the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP™) (Note 7). are accounted for as equity=
seftled awards. Under this method, compensation cost recognized includes compensation cost for all share-
based payvment arrangements granted based on the grant-date fair value, which is determined using both the
market and income valuation approaches as outlined in the EIP. The Company uses the graded vesting
method fo amortize the awards. The effect of forleitures on restricted shares is estimated when recognizing
compensation cost. Share-based compensation is recorded as a component of Compensation and benefits on
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Deferred taxes on the amortization of share<based payments are based on the estimated tax deduction at the
emd of the reporting period and are re-measured each reporting period to reflect the change in the current
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share price. When the future tax deduction 15 expected to exceed the gramt date compensation expense
recognized, the cxcess tax benefit is recognized as Contributed surplus. A tax deduction shortfall is
recognized as additional tax expense,

Income Taxes

As part of the reorganization effective June 1, 2018 (Note 1), the Company elected to be treated as a
disregarded entity pursuant to Treasury Repulation Section 301.7701-3 for federal income lax purposcs.
Generally, disregarded entities are not subject to entitv-level federal or state income taxation and, as such, the
Company is not required to provide for income taxes after the date of the reorganization. Income tax expense
or benefit has been recorded in the Company’s financial statements since it is considered a taxable
corporation up through May 31, 2018, However, all U.S federal and state defeorred tax balances as of May 31,
2018 have been eliminated through the income statement, other comprehensive loss, or the equity section of
the financial statements.

The Company’s tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred income tax for the period January 1,
2018 through May 31, 2018 (“the 2018 pre-reorganization period™) and the year ended December 31, 2017,
Tax expense related to the Company’s branch operation reflects the full vear result of 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Tax is recognized as an expense or benefit in profit or loss except to the extent that i relates o
items that are recognized outside profit or loss (whether in other comprehensive loss or directly in equity). in
which case the tax is recognized in other components of the financial statements.

Under the IFRS lability method, a provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for
recognition is measured based on the probability weightled average approach. There were no uncerlain tax
positions recorded by the Company in either year presented.

The Company™s branch operation is subject to local tax in the jurisdiction in which it 1s located. The related
current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed on the Balance Sheets at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, and the related cash tax payments are made by the branch. The branch operation has no
deferred tax assets or liabilitics on the Balance Sheets at Diecember 31, 2008 and 2017,

For the 2018 pre-reorganization period and the vear ended December 31, 2017, the Company was taxed as a
corporation under U5, tax law. As such the Company and Parent participated in a written agreement (“Tax
Sharing Agreement™) with a U.S. affiliate of Lifeco, with which it files consolidated federal and certain
combined stale income tax relums, The ULS, affiliate assumes ultimate responsibility for the payment of all
taxes in accordance with federal and state laws with respect to consolidated and/or combined returns, The
Company is responsible for all taxes for the 2018 pre-reorganization period and prior year separately [iled
returns. For the 2018 pre-reorganization period and the vear ended December 31, 2017, the Company
accounted for income taxes on the modified separate return method on its separate company financial
stalemenis. Under this method, cumrent and deferred tax expense or benefit are determined on a separate retum
basis, based on the financial position and resulis of operations as presented herein, but consideration is given
o taxable income or losses from other members of the affilisted group in evaluating the realizability of its
deferred tax assets.

Current Income Tax

Current income tax is based on taxable income for the vear. Current tax liabilitics (assets) for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities
using the lax rales that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Current Lax assels
and current tax liabilities are offset. if a legally enforceable right exists to offset the recognized amounts and
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the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultancously.
U5, current taxes are scitled through the intercompany account, while the remaining non-ULS, taxes are paid
by the Company’s branch, The current tax expense represents the current tax obligation of the Company’s
branch operation for the full year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017,

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is the tax expeeted to be pavable or recoverable on differences arising between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in
the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilitics are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences whereas deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable
profits will be available to utilize the asset,

The camrying amount of delerred tax assels is reviewed al each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defemed
tax assel to be utilized. The unrecognized deferred tax asset is reassessed at cach balance sheet date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply to the vear when the
assel 15 realized or the lability 15 settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacled or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Dieferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities arc offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax labilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable authority and the same taxable entity or different taxable entilies
which intend 1o settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis. Deferved taxes related to ULS. taxes have
been reported through the intercompany account { Accounts Payable to Parent and afliliates). In accordance
with the cash management policy with the Parent, the Company shall settle. via an inlercompany transaction,
an amount equal to the provision or benefit for income taxes using the Company’s stand-alone tax rate
computed using the Company’s individual appertionment factors. Such amounts are seitled periodically. The
2017 deferred tax expense represents movement in the overall deferred tax balances.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in United States dollars, which s the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. For the foreign branch, exchange rate differences anising from the
translation of their monetary assets and liabilities in the forcign operation are recorded to wnrealized foreign
exchange gains (losses) on translation of foreign operations in Accumulated other comprehensive loss
(“AOCL").

For the purpose of presenting these financial statements, assets and liabilities denominated in foreizn
currencies are translated into United States dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates
and all foreign denominated income and expense iflems are translated at a monthly average of daily rates,
Unrealized forcign cumency translation gains and losses on the Company’s net investment in its foreign
operations are presented separately as a component of AOCL. Unrealized gains (losses) will be recognized in
Met investment (loss)/income and other (loss)income on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
when there has been a disposal of the investment in the foreign operations.

Forcign currency translation gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
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Member's Equity

Contribuied surplus represents capital contributions made to the Company from the Parent. Accumulated
deficit represents the accumulated losses of the Company, AOCL represents the total of the unrealized foreign
exchange gains (losses) on ranslation of forcign operations, On the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss, this activity is classified by nature and grouped between items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss and those that will not be reclassified. Accounts (receivable from)pavable to Parent and
alfiliates, net represents transactions between the Company and other subsidiaries of the Parent.

Leases

Leases that do not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases, where the Company is the lessee, are charged to net earnings

over the period of use (Note 10,

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of new or revised accounting

standards, as follows:

Amendment/ New Standard

Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies

IFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the guidance
of IFRS 135, Revenue from Contracts with Custoemers. The new
guidance outlines a single comprehensive mode] for entities to
use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers and supersedes most current revenue recognilion
guidance, including industry-specific guidance. It also revises
the criteria for determining if an entity is acting as a principal or
agent in certain amangements,

As previously discussed in Note 2, the Company has concluded
that, while there will not be a change in the timing of revenue
recognition, the presentation of distribution fees in the financial
statements will change from being reported on a net basis to a
gross basis, which did not impact the Company’s Net loss or
Accumulated deficit. Additionally, the Company recognized a
tax benefit of 52000332 through Accumulated deficit as a
result of the write-off of prepaid dealer commissions at
affiliates.

IFRES 9 - Financial Instruments

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the guidance
of IFRS 9, Financial Insirumenis to replace [AS 39, Financial
Instruments:  Recognition and Measwrement. As previously
discussed in Note 2, the adoption of this standard provides
changes to  finamcial  nstruments accounting for  the
classification and measurement of financial instruments, the
impairment method utilized as it relates to expected credit loss,
and for hedge accounting. The adoption of this standard resulted
in the reclassification of certain financial assets and liabilities
for the Company, The Company also added disclosure
regarding the impairment assessment on financial assefs using
the expected eredit loss model.

16

216/270



EDINETOOOO
0o0000000000000000000000000(E15262)
Y e o o
THE PUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In USE
Amendment/New Standard Summary of Changes in Accounting Policies
Annual Improvements 2014 Effective January 1. 20118, the Company adopted the guidance in
2016 Cyele the narrow scope amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of

International Reporting Standards and Intemational Accounting
Standard (“TAS™) 28, [nvesmmems in Associgres and Joim
Ventures,

The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

IFES 2 — Share-based Pavment | Effective January 1, 2018, the Company adopted the guidance in
the amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Pavment, which
clarifies how to account for certain types of share-based
payment transactions. More specifically, the amendments
provide requirements on the accounting for the effects of vesting
and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-settled
share-based pavments. for share-based payment transactions
with a net settlement feature for withholding tax obligation, as
well as, a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment that changes the classification of the transaction
from cash-settled to equity-settled.

The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 22 — Foreign Currency Effective January 1, 2018 the Company adopted the guidance of
Transactions and Advance International Financial Reporting Interpretations  Commities
Consideration (“IFRIC™) Interpretation 22, Faoreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration, which provides requirements about
which exchange rate to use in reporting foreign currency
transactions when payment is made or received in advance.

The adoption of this interpretation had no impact on the
Company’s financial statements,
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Future Accounting Policies

The Company may be impacied in the future by the IFRS set oul in the following table:

Amendment/New Standard Summary of Fulure Changes

IFES 16 - Leases In Janwary 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases, which
introduces new guidance for identifying leases as well as the
accounting presentation of leases by the lessee. The lessee now
recognizes a liability for the fiture lease pavments made for each
lease, with the liability being established as the present value of
future cash flows. A key mput into the present value caleulation
is the discount rate established by management. A right-of~use
assel is also recognized and amortized over the useful life, As a
result, the previous distinetion between operating and Anancing
leases no longer applies.

In contrast to the significant changes for lessees, the new
standard will retain many key aspects of the current lessor
accounting model.

With respect to first time application of IFRS 16, the Company
can choose to apply the standard using the full retrospective
approach or modified retrospeetive approach. The Company has
determined that it will elect the modified retrospective approach.

The Company adopted the standard on its effective date of
January 1, 2019, The presentation of right-of-use asscts and leasc
liabilities on the balance sheet will be within Other assets and
Other liabilities, respectively. The adoption of the standard
restlted in approximate increases to assets of S481L,000 and
liabilities of S469.000 on the Balance Sheets. The Company does
not anticipate that there will be a material impact in the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Annual Improvements 2015 - In December 2017, the IASE issued Anmual Improvements 2015 -
2017 Cyele 2047 Cyele as part of its ongoing process to efficiently deal with
non-urgent narrow scope amendments o IFRS. Four amendments
were included in this dssue relating to IFRS 3, Business
Combinations, IFRS 11, Joint Arrangements, TAS 12, Income
Taxes and TAS 23 Borrowing Costs,

The amendments were effective January 1, 2019, Adoption of
these amendments will not have a significant impact on the
Company’s [inancial stalements.
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3. Investments

The Company recognizes investments purchased, and derecognizes investments sold, on the trade date. As of
December 31, 2017, the carryving value of investments, which approximates fair value, that the Company held
in seed investments in unconsolidated Company Funds was 510,837,761, During the vear ended December
31, 2018, the Company contributed ils investments to PAH 1L {Note 2).

The Company. as agent. 15 the sponsor for a number of structured entitics and portfolio manager lor separate
accounts that are not consolidated by the Company. These structured entities include institutional funds and
other investment products. The nature and purpose of these entitics is to provide investors with a varicty of
investment opportunitics through managed investment strategies. As of December 31, 2018 and December 31,
2017, total AUM relating to the institutional portfolios and other investment products of the Company was
521,674,296,734 and 521,043,415,206, respectively.

The Company receives management fees and other service and distribution fees related to the services it
provides to the Company Funds, which are disclosed on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, The
Company also makes direct investments in these entities from time (o time, the amount of which 15 disclosed
above. Fees eamed and the fair value of seed investments in unconsolidated Company Funds are considered
variable interests due to the impact that changes in the value of AUM can have on them. The decision 1o not
consolidate these sponsored structured entities was made afier considering the level of the Company’s
variable interests in the entities related to fees received, and direct interests held, in the entities. As of
December 31, 2018, the Company does not have any dircel investments in entilies.
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The following table presents information about all of the Company s financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on both a recurring and non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and indicates the
fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to determine such fair value:

December 31, 2018
Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Other francial instruments ' - 15172075 - 15172075
Total financial assets §- S15,172.075 8- 815,172,075
{ iabilities measured at fair value
Other fmancial nstruments - 3044865 - 34 865
Total financial liabilitie s §- 83,044,865 5- 83,044 865

" Other fnancial instruments include Accrued mvestment advisory fecs necervable, Other recervables,

Acerued conpensation and enployes benefs and Accounts payable and acerued expenses.

! Other financial instruments ane initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using

the effective interest rale method. The amon ired cost of other fnancial instraments approsametes their fair vale,

December 31, 2017 {as adiwsted)

Assets measured al fatr value Level ] Level2 Level 3 Total
Unconsobidated Company Funds ™ - 10,837,761 - 10837761
Total investments §- 510,837,761 5 S10,837,761
Other firancial nstruments ™' ® - 10835427 - 10835427
Total linancial assets 5- §21,673,188 5- 521,675,188
Fiabilities measured at fair value

Cither firaneil istruments ™' ® - 1,971 942 - 1,971 542
Total financial labilities §- $1.971,942 8- $1,971.942

" Other fnancial instraments inchrde Accrued mvestment advisory fees receivable, Acemed compensation and
employee benefds and Accounts payable and scerued expenses.

2 i her fnanetal instruments ane mitsally recorded at fur value and subsequently measured at amontized cost using
the effectrve mterest mie method. The amortired cosl of other inancial mstruments approxdmedes ther fur value,

i iineonzolidated company finde inchide investments in zeed pontfolios where the Company does not have control
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4.

All gains and losses recorded during the vear for assets held at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are reported in
Net investment (loss)/income and other (loss)income in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

During the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers made between Level 1 and
Level 2 categories.

MNet investment (loss)income and other (loss)income for the vears presented is comprised of the following:

For the Year Fnded Decermber 31, 2018

Investiment
Portfolics Cther Total
Net unrealized and realized losses (FVTPL) (317,915 5 (317935
Dividend meome and other meome/{loss) - {3999 (399}
Net imvestment (loss)income and other (loss)/income (517,915) (5399 (518,314)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 (as adjusted)

Inv estment

Portfolios Other Tatal
Net unrealized and realized gains (FVTFL) 31,624,251 B 31,624,251
Dividend meome and other income - 10,116 10,116
Net investment (loss)income and ather (loss)income 51,624,251 S10,116 51,034,367

Capital Assets, net

The carrving value of capital assets, and the changes in the carrving value of capilal assels, are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Furmi ture amd Leasehold

fixtures FIOF Faged poent Inopiroverme s Tuotal
Carrving value, begmning of year £92610 £115.272 S385 100 £503.081
Less: accunmiated depreciation (926100 (113440 {385,100} {300,249
Wet camymg vahe, beginning of year - 1,832 - 1632
Retirements (22,010 - - (16100
Depreciation - (1,832} - (1,530
Agewrmilated depreciation retirements 92610 - - a2 6l
Camving value, end of vear . 115272 385,199 S00471
Less: aceurmbted deprecation - (115272 (3RS, 190 (500471}
Net carrving vadue, end of year 8 5. %- 5.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2007 (as adjusted )
Furniture and Leasehold

lixiures HOF BEguipment  Ingrovements Total
Carmrying value, begmning of vear S92,610 £115,272 B385,199 £503,081
Less: acourmilated deprecation (92.610) {110,689) (385,199 {588, 498)
Met carrying vahie, beginning of vear - 4,583 - 4,583
Depreciation . (2,751} - (2,7513
Camrying valee, end of vear 9261k 115272 385,199 So3.081
Less: accunmulated deprecation (92 6100 {113, 4:40) (385,190 {591,249
Met carrving value, end of vear 5 81,832 8- 51,5832

5. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following:
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
(as adjested)

Prepard assets 453306 402514
Chher assels 1,528 204,963
Total 5454834 5607477

6, Income Taxes

{a}) The Company has current tax labilitics related to its branch operation. In accordance with the Tax
Sharing Agresment previously mentioned in Note 2, current and deferred tax liabilities or assets related to
115, federal and state income taxes are reflected in the Accounts (receivable from)pavable to Parent and
affiliates, net, and the balances have been setiled with the Parent as of June 1, 2018, Tax payable for the
branch is as follows:

December 31, 2008 Decenirer 31, 2017

(s adpsted)

Current tax Bability - foreign S248. 260 $163, 500
Current tax liakility, net 5248269 5163500
Current tax Bability, net, beginning of year £103,500 £50,525
Expenses dunng vear 242,040 144,591
Payvments made on aceount (16085 (44,771
Other 3585 4.155
Current tax liabdlity, nel, endof year S 248,209 5163500

[
[ e ]
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ib) The Company’s branch operation has no deferved tax assets or liabilities on the Balance Sheets at

December 31, 2018 and 2017.

{¢) Income tax expense for the year is comprised of current and deferred tax:

(1) Current tax

Current tax expense
Total current tax

(1) Deferred tax

Origmation and reversal of temporary difference
Changes in taxrates or mposition of new taxes
Irmpact of reorganization

Total deferred tax expense

Total income tax expense

(i) Tax recorded n Member's equity

Totaltaxrecorded i other comprehensive loss
Total taxrecorded in contributed ﬁur]‘sh.l.r.
Total taxrecorded n accumulated deficit

(2]

Forthe year ended For the vear ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
(as adjusted)
S22, 040 $144.501
£242,040 5144591

Forthe year ended

For the vear ended

December 31, 20018 December 31, 2017
(as adjusted)
(33,141,297 (ST035.118)
1,249, 706 G2 404,775
30491 675 .
528,600,084 555429657
528,842,124 555574248
Forthe yearended  For the vear ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
(as adjusted)
$3,529, 845 $2,252. 704
- {156,620)
(2,006, 332 -

Lak
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id) The Company’s effective income tax rate is derived as follows:

Forthe year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2018 Dwecember 31, 2017
{us adjusted)
U5, Federal stainl Oy rale {35, 1 38,898} el K1 (54006, 371 ERELLE
Incrense (decrense)a the incoms: taxmie resulling om
UL, state taxes - ned of ULS, federal income tax benedil 1728313 T.04%% (244,574) 212
Menls and enterlanment 12.M1 0054 24,701 0.3%%
Tt of foregn operalions (1.229.457) 5.02% (2.668.446) 23408%
Post reorganmation bes 282276 -12.0%% - LLLL
Share-based compensaion adjustment - 0007 57154 <0.84%
U5 TaxRefomm - (.00 62,781.173 -S43
Impact of rearganizalion 30,491,675 =124.60F - 0005
Ciher {4, 1265 {102 L8138 3. 30Fa
Effectve incomse o rile applicable to res pective year 528.842,124 -117.86% §55.574.248 80,70

The Company does not have any unrecognized tax benefits recorded in the periods ending December 31, 2018
and 2017, The Company’s policy is to include penaltics and interest related to uneertain tax positions in its
income tax provision. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company did not recognize
any interest and penalties in its income tax provision and does not have any accrued interest and penalties at
December 31, 2018, The Company’s ULS. Federal and State net operating losses are subject to adjustment and
examination for tax years ending December 31, 2007 and therealter,

On December 22, 2017, HE. 1, the Tax Reconciliation Act (*the Act™), was enacted. The legislation, which
was generally effective for tax years beginning on January 1, 2018, resulted in significant U5, tax reform and
revised the Internal Revenue Code by, among other things, lowering the corporate federal ncome tax rate
from 33% to 21% and modifying how the U5, taxes multinational entitics,

The net impact of the revaluation of deferred tax balances due to the lowering of the corporate federal income
tax rate from 35% to 21% was $62.781.173 of income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2017

The overall impact of the reorganization (described in Mote 2) resulted in income tax expense of 330,491,673
which is primarily the elimination of the deferred tax balance arising during the pre-reorganization period and
the unsettled intercompany balance relating to the US lederal and state deferred tax balances.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant interdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are deseribed below.
The Company is responsible for and has established processes to identify all related parties and to disclose all
significant transactions involving related parties.

Accounts (receivable from ) payable to Parent and affiliates, net

The Company instructs third-parties to remit cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and instructs the Parent to
disburse cash on its behalf. The receivables or payables on the Balance Sheets represent amounts for which
the Parent has vet to pay or receive on the Company”s behalf, The Parent also allocates certain expenses to the
Company. Accounts (receivable from)/pavable to Parent and affiliates, net represents the net of intercompany
transactions between the Company, the Parent and affiliates due to {i) the above mentioned receipt and
payment of cash by the Parent on its behalf (1i) intercompany service fees and allocation of expenses from/to
other affiliated subsidiaries of the Parent (i) the previously described Tax Sharing Agreement, and (iv)
subordinated debt. On March 31, 2010, Putnam Investments Canada ULC (“PIC ULC™) executed a non-
interest bearing subordination agreement with the Company in the amount of $6,740,991, The repayment of
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this amount 15 subordinate to the claims of the other creditors of PIC ULC. The loan is callable. however it
has no maturity date, and repayment is not expected within one year.

These balances are recorded as comesponding increases or decreases in the Member’s equity section of the
Balanee Sheets as the Company neither payvs or receives, nor anticipales payving or receiving cash related to
these balances. The gross changes i recenvable and payable for the vear related to these transactions are
disclosed separately on the Statements of Cash Flows as financing activitics. As of December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Company had a net intercompany {recetvable)' payable balance of (515.728.387) and 573.317,769
respectively, which is included in Accounts (receivable from)/pavable to Parent and affiliates, net in the
Balance Sheets.

Intercompany balances due to/(from) affiliates as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

December 31, AN December 31, 2007

(as adjusted)
Non-nterest bearmg, unsecured payvable/recenable)
Due {from)'to PUSH T ($2196.914) 70 TEA 6T
Due from PAHII (9889, 602) -
Due (from)yto Putnam Investments Limited = TE (3,600, 768 Q005194
Due to Putnam Inyvestments Secunties Co., Lid. - Japan 43622 1,859 552
Due to Putnam Intemational Distnbutors, Lid. - Cayvman 543500 544,397
Due to Putnam Fetail Management LP (CFREM™) BT 433,004
Due tofifrom) Putnam Investments Australia Pry Ltd. 13218 {52591}
Due from Putnam Fidueiany Trust Company ("FFTC") (1,833,679 (1,255471)
Due from Putnam Investments (Treland ) Limited (325557 (1,373,795)
D from PIC ULC (4, T36,072) {4,468, 503)
Due to/{ from) Putnam Investments Management, LLC ("PIM™} 10007 {177 657
Total accounts {receivable from)/payable to Parent and afliliates, net {815,728.387) ST5317. 769
25
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Revenue and Expenses with Affiliates

A portion of the Investment advisory fees, net included in revenue on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss is attributed to institutional clients and an affiliate who are related parties. The total
revenue and AUM for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

‘Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 20117
{as adjusted)
Related Party Revenue £5,343.773 5,603,308
Related Party AUM $2,344.463,792 $2,580,348,102

The receivables associated with the revenue received from related parties are S1.400,984 and $763,554 as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are included in Accrued investment advisory fees receivable
on the Balance Sheets.

The Company also receives revenue from cerlain clients as part of a revenue sharing agreement with a
minority owner of an affiliate in which the Company provides certain services as part of the relationship. The
total revenue eamed under these agreements was 513,936,177 for the vear ended December 31, 2017, and is
recorded in Investment advisory fees, net on the Statement of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, During the vear
ended December 31, 2018, the minority owner sold its interest in the affiliate to the Parent and is no longer
considered a related party,

The Company also incurs expenses from certain affiliates for sub-advisory services that the affiliates provide
for certain institulional portfolios. Total expenses paid to affiliates for the vears ended December 31, 2018
and 2017 are 5280,560 and $337480 respectively, and are included in Other operating expenses on the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Service Fee Expense paid to Affiliates

As described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company paid 525380067 and
520,974,242 for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. pursuant to a transfer pricing
agreement with its loreign alliliates. This expense is included in Service fee expense m the Statements of
Loss and Comprehensive Loss and 15 outlined below:

Transfer pocing Year Ended Year Endad
Aflliate Methodology Decerrber 31,2018 December 312007
Puetmam Investments Limited - LK Coszt Plus 108s §14.730, 160 31207716
Putnam Investments Secunties Co, Ltd. - Japan Cost Plus 9% 4,662.11% 441933
Puitriam Investments Australin Pty Lid. Cozt Plus 9% 1,077 827 482 435
Putnam Investuents (Ireland) Lingted Sbps on AUM 1,792 348 1,174,725
Putnam Investments Canada ULC 9 bps on AUM 30100607 2818,030
Total service fee expense midio alliliales S25.380,067 520,974,242

Intercom pany Settlement

During the vear ended December 31, 2018, the Company distributed 52.971.270 as a non-cash dividend-in-
kind to the Parent and received $141,657.741 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of
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a group=wide exercise camried out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical intercompany balances
between Putnam affiliates. The Company’s Accounts (receivable from)/payable to Parent and affiliates, net,
and Contributed surplus were impacted as a result of these transactions,

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company distributed $13.192,371 as a non-cash dividend-in-
kind to the Parent and received $112, 102,630 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of
a group-wide exercise carried out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical intercompany balances
between Putnam affiliates. The Company’s Accounts {receivable from)/pavable to Parent and atfiliates. net,
and Contributed surplus were impacted as a result of these transactions,

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent, and affiliates of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 401(k) defined contribution
retirement plan (the *“Plan™) covering substantially all emplovees, Under this Plan. emplovees may defer a
percentage of eligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certain limitations, a portion of which is matched
by the Company. The Company also provides for an annual diseretionary contribution as determined by the
Parent’s Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company s share of the
annual expense to the Plan totaled 5334603 and S329.489, respectively. These amounts are included in
Compensation and benefils mn the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Capitalized Soltware

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for internal use as long-lived assets, which
are amorlized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of three vears or the estimated useful life. The
amortization expense is allocated to each subsidiary of the Parent, by PUSH 1, based on the subsidiary’s
usage of each capitalized software project. Amortization expense allocated to the Company during the vears
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $1.699.433 and S1464.262, respectively, and i3 included in
Allocated expenses from Parent and atfiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the Putnam Investments. LLC Equily Incentive Plan (the “EIP7). Cerlain emplovees of
the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricted shares of
the Parent’s Class B common shares and Class B stock oplions,

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesting period and based on
the grant date fair value of the award. A portion of these expenses is allocated to the Company in a manner
consistent with the grant of such share-based payments,

The Company accounts for the awards issued under the EIP as equity awards in accordance with the I[FRS 2
puidance related to share-based payment transactions among group entities. The Company receives the
services of the employees granted the share awards, but has no obligation to settle the share awards. That
obligation belongs to the Parent.

The Company has employvees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to
the EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair
market value of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income valuation
approaches as oullined in the EIP, which meludes consideration of the range of values determined by a
nationally recognized independent valuation firm chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for
these awards is being amortized over the vesting period of up to five years. Compensation expense directly
charged to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $744.829 and $836,229,
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respectively, and i included in Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss. Compensation expense allocated to the Company for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was
5346.26]1 and $300,070 respectively, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates. net in
the Statements of Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss. As of December 31, 2018, there was $3,321,687 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares.
The weighted average period over which that expense is expected to be recognized is 4.03 vears.

Restricted Class B Shares

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018 For the Year Ended December 31, 2017
{as adjusted)

Welghted Average Weighted Average
Grant Date Cerant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unwested balance at January 1 206 300 218.41 193,000 51987
Grarted 63,500 17.13 53,500 1489
Vested (33,200} 2160 (37,2000 20.91
Forfeited (13,000} 1628 - -
Unwested balance al December 31 226,600 51771 205 300 518.41

Key Management Com pensation

Key management of the Company includes certain executives of the Parent that have the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The individuals that
comprise the key management personnel are the Board of Directors, as well as certain key management and
officers. A portion of the compensation paid to these directors and executives is allocated to the Company on
the same basis as the other expense allocations from the Parent and is included in Allocated expenses from
Parent and affiliates, net on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as follows:

For the Year Ended Forthe Year Ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 20017
{as adjusted)

Salary 2337031 331025
Share-based compensation 379108 43,511
Annual non-share-based ncentive compensation 2376711 2270061
Total compens ation 3,092,850 53,244,597

Allocated Expenses from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company shares office facilitics. personnel and other arrangements further deseribed in this note with
other subsidiarics of the Parent. Accordingly. the related costs of such arrangements have been alloeated by
the Parent and by affiliates among the various subsidiaries in a manner which management belicves is
representative of the actual costs incurred. This includes the costs associated with capitalized sollware and
kev management compensation as disclosed above, Additionally, in the course of the Company’s day-to-day
business operations cerltain personnel from other subsidiarics of the Parent are uiilized to support the
Company, the related costs of which have been allocated to the Company. in a manner which management
believes is representative of actual costs incurred. The Company also allocates certain of its own costs among
various afliliates in a manner which management believes is representative of the actual costs incurred.
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8.

During the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company was allocated $31.953.077 and
$33,024.868 of costs, respectively, as outlined below. These charges are included in Adlocated expenses from
Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2007
(as adpsted)
General & Admmstralive Expense from PUSH | S04,848. 105 513,864 476
Investment Management Expense from PEM 21,332,193 22335867
Instiutional Expense to PRM and PFTC {7,887.959) {7.010,178)
Cobal Investment Simtegies Expense from PEM 1,528 552 1,665 865
Marketing Expense from FRAM 1112186 2,064,586
Total Allocated expenses from Parent and affili ates, net §31,953,077 §33,024,868

Other Operating Expenses

For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
December 38, 2008 December 31, 2017
{as wdnested)

Travel & Entertainment

Rent

Facility maintenance & wtlites

Industry dues & filing fees

Expenses paid to afflates

Depreciation of capital assets
Mizcellaineous other operating expenses

Total other Eminﬁ EXPENGES

§964,733 §961,123
271,260 280 Teo
404,845 380,438
ISR S 44287
280,560 337,480
1,832 2,751
476,527 ¥ 525
21 818,062 81,497,070

Accumulated Other Com prehensive Loss

Balance, begnnimg of v ear

Orther comprehensive gain, net
Income tax expense

Balance, end of year

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Unrealized Foreign

Exchange Loss

on Translation of
Forcign O perations, net Total
(54,261,803) (54,261,803)
136,250 136,250
{3,529 845) (3,529.845)
(57.655,398) (57.655,398)
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For the Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2017
Unrealized Foreign ~ Unrealized Gain (Loss)
Exchange Loss on Awallable-
on Translation of For-Sale
Foreign Operations, met Inve st ents Total
Balance, beginning of vear (s previoushy reported) (S10,140,902) S360,243 (59, 780,659)
Effect of reorganization (Mote 1) 0974007 (361,122 0,612 885
Balance, beginning of vear (as adjustad) { 155, 895} (BT} (167,774}
Other comprehansive loss, net (g adjusted) (1,905,755} - {1,905,755)
Income tax expense (as adjus ted) {2,187, 828) (A6} (2 1B8274)
Balance, end of vear (as adjusted) ES-I».NIJ.-!?S] Elﬁ} ﬁ&ﬁﬂ .SHJ-E

10, Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

The Company enters into operating leases for office space used in the normal course of operations under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements, Lease payments are charged to operations over the period of use.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office space are as
follows:

Pavments due by vear as of December 31, 2018
Total 2019 2020 2021 2 2003 Thereafter
Chperating Leases 5493 410 8246,705 246,705 5 = 5 5-

Payiments due by vearas of Decernber 31, 2017 (as adjusted)
Total 2018 2015 2020 2021 2022 Thereafter
Cperating Leases 5755145 5251715 $251,715 $251,715 8- £ &=

Total rent expense, included in Other operating expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
was 5271.260 and $280.766, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Claims, Lawsuits, Provisions and Other Confingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal aclions, including class actions, arising in the normal
course of business. It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Company.

In addition, the Company receives inquirics, including requests for documents and imformation, in the course
of its business from various state and federal regulators inguiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds
to these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory mquiries, and there are no such matters pending that
the Company believes could have a material adverse effect on its resulls of operations, cash flows or linancial
position.
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Other Litigation

The Company became a defendant in an action that alleges the Company vielated state law by allowing
another enlity to pick poor performing assets (underlying collateral) for a CIN). Claims against the Company
are for fraud, negligent misrepresentation and negligence, The Company filed a motion to dismiss. The
Company’s motion to dismiss was granted on April 28, 2014, Litigant fled an appeal and on April 15, 2015
the Court reversed the district court’s dismissal and remanded the case to the district court for further
proceedings. Cross motions for summary judgement were filed on September 21, 2018, Oral arguments were
held on Movember 7, 2018, The Company deems that the claim is not probable of bemng successful and no
contingency has been recorded.

11. Capital Management

The Parent monitors the amount of consolidated capital available, and the amounts deploved in its various
operating subsidiaries, including the Company. The amount of capital deploved in any particular company or
country is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Parent’s internal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of itz operational risks and requirements and stratesic plans. The Parent’s practice
is to maintain the Company’s capitalization at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory
capital requirements in the jurisdictions in which they operate,

The Company must maintain minimum member’s equity of $1,000,000 in certain jurisdictions subject to rules
under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act ("ERISA™). During the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively, the Company was in compliance with all minimum capital requirements.

12, Risk Management

The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring, mitigating and controlling
of rsks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are credit nisk,
liguidity risk and market risk {cwrrency, interest rate and equity), The following sections deseribe how the
Company manages cach of these risks.

Management is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring
the capital plan. The Board of Directors of the Parent reviews and approves all material capital transactions
undertaken by management.

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk for financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due,
The Company regularly reviews its eredit exposure from cach counterparty. The Company monitors its
credit risk management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness. These policies include, but
are not limited to. dealing only with creditworthy counterpartics and obtaining sulficient collateral, where
appropriate. as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The maximum credit
exposure is the carrying value of the assets on the Balance Sheets, net of any allowances for losses. There
arg no allowances Tor vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
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() Liguidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the nsk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they
come due, The following policies and procedures are i place 1o manage this rsk:

The Company closcly manages operating liquidity through cash fow matching of assets and liabilities,
The Company has the financial support of its Parent, which maintains a $500,000,000 revolving credit
agreement with a consortiom of banks.

The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due at December 31,
2018,

The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal vear,

[ ]

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that give rise to commitments of
future minimum payments that impact short-term and long-term liquidity. A table in note 10 Commitments
and Contingencies summarizes the principal repayment schedule of the Company’s financial liabilitics as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017,

{e) Market Risk

Market risk 15 the risk that the @i value of futere cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market factors. Market factors include three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate
risk, and equity risk.

{1) Currency Fask

Currency risk relates to the Company operating in different currencies and converting non-U.5, dollar
camings at different points in time at different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in
foreign currency exchange rates occur. The Company’s [inancial instruments are generally
denominated in U5, dollars and do not have significant exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates.

(1) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists if asset and liability cash flows are not closely matched and interest rates change
causing a difference in value between the asset and Hability, The Company, through instruction from
the Parent, monitors interest rate risk by regularly assessing this risk and establishing policies and
practices to protect against the adverse effects of these potential exposures. The Company’s primary
exposures to interest rate risk arise from fee revenue earned by the Company that is dependent on the
debt portfolios of Putnam sponsored funds. A one percent inerease or decrease in the vield of these
funds would have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately $611,000 and $402,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

(iif) Equity Risk
Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in equity
markets. The Company through instruction from the Parent has investment policy guidelines in place
that provide for prudent investment in equity markets with clearly defined limits to mitigate price risk.
The Company’s primary exposure o equity risk arises from fee revenue eamed by the Company that is
dependent on the equity portfolios of PIM sponsored funds, PAC mstitvtional clients and seed
mvestments, A ten percent increase or decrease in equity markets would have resulied in a change in
net loss of approximately $2,326,000 and 51,287,000 for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively,
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13, Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after December 31, 2018 through May
24, 2019, the date these Onancial stalements were available to be 1ssued,

Effective Januvary 1, 2019, pursuant lo a transfer pricing agreement between the Company and PFTC, PAC
has agreed to provide investment advice and secunties trading services to PFTC. The terms of the transfer
pricing agreement allow for PFTC to receive a retum on its equity for s Gduciary risk, and for PAC to
receive The residual fees as 1t performs all remaining functions and bears all remaining risk.

Additionally, effective Janvary 1. 2009, pursvant to a transfer pricing agreement between the Company and
PIM, PAC has arranged with PIM for the use of mvestment personnel emploved by PIM. The terms of the
arrangement require PAC to pay PIM a fee per annum of PACs average AUM, This agreement replaces the
historic investment management expense allocation summartzed in Note 7.

Except as described above, the Company is not aware of any other subsequent events which would require
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putham
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30,
2019 and April 30, 2018, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (10ss), of changes in net
assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as of April 30, 2019 and April 30, 2018, and its financia performance and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 29, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related statements of
loss and comprehensive loss, changes in member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial
position of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its

operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter

Asdiscussed in Notes 1, 2, 6, and 7, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its affiliates. As
a result, these financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of
operations had the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

May 24, 2019
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